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NT LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2007/08 is HK$1,540
million as compared with last year’s HK$1,725 million, and the overall
profit has increased significantly to HK$142 million (2006/07: HK$96

million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The increase in our overall profits as compared with last year is mainly

attributable to the following reasons:

I. Our garment business continues to benefit from foreign exchange

gain on Euro and Pound Sterling during the current year.

2. Compensation received for the relocation of one of our principal

jointly controlled entities’ factory in Wuxi.

3. Closing down of all losing operations such as the Cambodia factory.

OUTLOOK

The coming year will be a difficult one for all our garment operations.
Our manufacturing costs in China have gone up sharply due to the
appreciation of the Renminbi, the new labour ordinance and the rising
cost of labour, fuel and raw materials. In addition we are facing a severe
downturn in both the U.S. and European markets. In order to combat
this adverse situation, our garment factories in Panyu endeavour to
improve our competitiveness by introducing new mode of operation
and to allocate more resources on the development of our domestic

business in China.

As to our Wuxi investment, we do not expect our spinning and weaving
operation to make much profit for the coming year due to the weak
market condition. However the compensation for the relocation of one

of its factories will continue to contribute profits to its operation.
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

APPRECIATION e 5

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our AAZERRESERZERRAAQNTZ
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their efforts and loyal BEEEBE—FRANEZEIREBELRR

service to the Company during the past year. FRERHE -

By Order of the Board AREBE®

Chan Sui Kau EE

Chairman R 3 BR

Hong Kong, 28th July, 2008 &E ZZEZN\FtA=+NAH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 was
HK$1,540 million compared with HK$1,725 million for the year ended
3Ist March, 2007, and the Group’s profit from ordinary activities after
share of profits less losses of associates and jointly controlled entities
and taxation was HK$142 million compared with last year’s profit of
HK$96 million, an increase of 48%.

GARMENT BUSINESS

We operate our textiles and garment business under the names of
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. and Hong Kong Knitters Ltd. Our products
include men’s and women’s shirts, trousers, shorts, polo shirts, t-shirts
and fleeces. The office in Hong Kong is the headquarters for our whole
group where we concentrate on the role of garment trading, sourcing
and the overall control of our own production facilities in the PRC as
well as our partnership garment factories in the PRC, Bangladesh, India,
Cambodia, Myanmar and Vietnam. We also have sales offices in the PRC
at Panyu, Guangzhou and Shanghai which oversee our domestic sales in

the regions.

Our fully-owned production facilities in the PRC are all located in
Panyu Guangzhou. They are Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) Ltd.
(“EQK”); Whampoa Garment Mfg. (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“WGM”) and
Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Ltd. ("TYG”). Our setup is a vertical one
from knitting, dyeing and finishing of fabrics to the manufacturing of
garments. Both EQK and WGM are compliant factories manufacturing
mainly high-end garments. Business has been steady in general but the
adverse factors in the PRC in the recent months as mentioned in the
paragraph headed “Outlook” of the Chairman’s Statement have put
a lot of pressure on our operation. In order to stay competitive and
to survive this unprecedented hardship, we are introducing innovative
manufacturing concepts to our operation, upgrading our production
equipments as well as putting in significant resources to open up more
of the PRC market for our products. Results have been encouraging
and we do expect both of our export and domestic business to grow

steadily in the coming year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDTN

In Bangladesh we have a small shirt factory named Lavender Garment
Ltd. (“Lavender”) which was established in early 2007. It incurred a
slight loss last year due to the fact that it was a new establishment. As
Bangladesh is an important area for us in the woven shirts production
and despite the fact that Lavender is not generating any profit at the
present stage, its presence is essential in the sense that it not only
oversees all the production at our partnership factories in Bangladesh
but also provides contingent support to both these factories as well as

our customers.

As previously advised, our factory in Cambodia after years of deficit was
finally closed down and the sale of its property had generated a slight

profit to the company.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wouxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Talak”) in which we have a 49%
shareholding is our jointly controlled entity that fully owns several
textiles related companies in Wuxi, the PRC, namely Wuxi Changxin
Textile Co., Ltd., Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. and Wuxi Yangtzekiang
Textile Co., Ltd. (collectively the “Wuxi Talak Group”). The core business
of the Wuxi Talak Group is the production of medium range to high
end yarn. In view of the relatively higher entry level, this is a less
competitive industry and thus the Wuxi Talak Group is able to maintain
a steady market share with higher profit margin. However due to all

the adverse factors mentioned previously, we expect profits generated

from the textile business in the coming year will be drastically reduced.

Nonetheless, the compensation derived from the relocation of one of its

factory will continue to contribute profits to the Wuxi Talak Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWEDTN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the period under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 3Ist March, 2008, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$96,838,000 (2007: HK$80,055,000). As at 31st March,
2008, the bank borrowings of the Group has short term borrowings
of approximately HK$78,434,000 (2007: HK$104,624,000) and there
was no long term borrowing (2007: HK$11,250,000). The gearing ratio
(calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total equity) of the
Group was 0.09 (2007: 0.17). The bank borrowings including bank loans

and overdrafts are mainly in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. Most of the operating activities are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars, Euros, Pounds Sterling or
Renminbi. For those denominated in other currencies, the Group may
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its receivables
and payables denominated in foreign currencies against the exchange

rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 3Ist March, 2008, the Group had pledged certain assets with
carrying values of HK$42,184,000 (2007: HK$38,334,000) mainly for

security of banking facilities granted to the Group.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately of
6,000 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund

scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”), and together with its subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (the “Group”) for the year ended 3Ist March,
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
garment products and textiles, the provision of processing services and
the rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars of

the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 147 to 148.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2008 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set

out in the financial statements on pages 28 to 146.

An interim dividend of HK5 cents (2007: HK3 cents) per share was
declared and paid on |5th January, 2008. The directors now recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HKI18 cents (2007: HKI5 cents) per
share in respect of the year ended 3Ist March, 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in

note 29(c) to the financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 of HK$142,240,000
(2007: HK$96,706,000) has been transferred to reserves.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of additions to and other movements in fixed assets during the

year are set out in note |3 to the financial statements.
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NT LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 3Ist March, 2008

are set out in note |3 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31st March, 2008 are set out in notes 25 to the financial

statements.
No interest expenses were capitalised by the Group during the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$159,000
(2007: HK$160,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during

the financial year is as follows :

The largest customer BAREF
Five largest customers in aggregate ENBRREEER

During the year, the Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

DIRECTORS

The present directors of the Company are listed on page 2.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs.
Leung Hok Lim and Lin Keping, Madam Chan Suk Man and Madam Chan
Suk Ling Shirley will retire from the Board by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that the Independent Non-executive Directors to be

independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as set out in note 34 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS INSHARES . ...  EBZRO\=m ...
(@) As at 3Ist March, 2008, the interests and short positions of the @ RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H ' £&2Q7F
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares ZEERBEZHBEAIAARQTG
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation EEE QAT (REFRBEEGFEY ([F
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures S0 EXVERZ R E) B0 - HE
Ordinance (the “SFO “)) which were required to be notified to BOREBESFTHEERBEFFHRME
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the XVEPE7TR8DE ~ LT ARESELT
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the BEXGEEFAZREBEHNEERA
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken AREBHEREMERAT ([BXR
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the Model ek Es (BEREREZ
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers EXBSGABREHBREREEEEZ
and which were required to be entered in the register kept by the BERZER) UWEEZABRERS
Company under section 352 of the SFO were as follows: RBIE2UFFE2ERMzERR
ZAWT :

Number of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.50 each
SREEBESITZEBRAEE

Personal Family Corporate Other

interest interests interests interests
Name of Director EEpgE BAER Rk AR R HtfE s
Chan Sui Kau R I BR 6,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 (i)
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRKZE 486,102 1,539,130 - (i) & (i) & (iii)
Chan Wing Kee FR K AL 1,761,624 208,356 — (i) & (i) & (iii) & (iv)
Chan Wing To R K 2,934,054 - — (i) & (i) & (iii) & (iv)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel [ 7k %2 11,244 - 3,043,080 (i) & (ii) & (iii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BRRE 1,728,816 24,000 - (i) & (ii) & (iii)
Chan Suk Man LR 1,535,442 - — (i) & (i) & (iii) & (iv)
So Ying Woon, Alan &R pEIE 12,000 — - -
Leung Hok Lim P EAEE - - - -
Wong Lam &K - - - -
Lin Keping PP - _ _ .
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Save

44,600,260 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling Shirley and Madam Chan Suk

Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

34,595,908 shares of the Company were held by Joycome Limited,
which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling
Shirley and Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the Chan

Family.

1,574,480 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun Samuel, Madam Chan
Suk Ling Shirley, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan Family.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan family.

as disclosed above, as at 3lst March, 2008, none of the

Directors or their associates, had, under Division 7 and 8 of Part

XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under

such

share
assoc
SFO)

provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
s, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
iated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

or any interests which are required to be entered into the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO

or an

y interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Trans

actions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules.

(b)

Wi -
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ZTREBAX L+ REMBRER
R EEEESR -

(iv) & 32,383,500 A QTR A
Super Team International Limited$¥F
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£ BB LT RAEMRE RIK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had short position in the shares
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any

options in respect of such capital as at 3Ist March, 2008.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23rd September, 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22nd
September, 2014.Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579
shares. On 19th September, 2006, it was approved in the Annual General
Meeting that the maximum number of options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing

10% of the number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31st March, 2008.
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ESEHREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. In the opinion
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions were

entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out

in note 26 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the revised Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix
4 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the Company set up an audit committee (the “Committee”) with
written terms of reference, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision on the financial reporting process and internal control of
the Group. The Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive

Directors.

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 151 and 152 of the annual

report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th July, 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited (the
“Company”) presents this Corporate Governance Report for the year

under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and has adopted various measures to ensure its
strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, a high level of
transparency in corporate governance and an excellent performance in

operation.

The Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice, as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited throughout the year, except that the Non-executive Directors of
the Company were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
rotation in annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to Articles

95 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code throughout the

year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, assessment and management of risk to which the Group is

exposed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Board comprises eight Executive Directors, being Messrs. Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To, Chan Wing Sun
Samuel, and So Ying Woon Alan and Madam Chan Suk Man and Madam
Chan Suk Ling Shirley, and three Independent Non-Executive Directors,

being Messrs. Leung Hok Lim,Wong Lam and Lin Keping.

The information of directorship is detailed in pages 21 to 25.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of

his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2008.

The attendance of the Directors was as follows:

ESS0EEITES SR ARKRE
ERKERE - RAKBELE RKEL
ECRKZBRE - HEBLERERAX
ZEREARRBRLZL  URIBBILIEHIT
Ex 2R ARERELE - IHREERM

ESCENFINE2LERLH

ARABERBELETRUNKERERHA
HNBIYFHTES REVABIEN
EXER PNEHEMRYBEENE
EHAE - ARRCEESBIFUTE
BRELTRAUFIBHEEEEABYIMENE
ERR R -

EZERFRETTORER BESZ
HFE ST

Meeting attended/Held

Directors S HEBITEERK
Chan Sui Kau (Chairman) BRI IR (£ /) 4/4
Chan Wing Fui Peter (Vice Chairman) BRoKE (B/E/E) 4/4
Chan Wing Kee (Managing Director) BRKAH (BB AEHE) 4/4
Chan Wing To (Deputy Managing Director) BRIKE (5 E FAEALHE) 4/4
Chan Suk Man IR 4/4
Chan Wing Sun Samuel R 7k &2 4/4
Chan Suk Ling Shirley AR 4/4
So Ying Woon Alan & FEiE 4/4
Leung Hok Lim RER 4/4
Wong Lam E&K 4/4
Lin Keping M5 4/4

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Managing
Director’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities.
The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance

of power and authority.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr.Wong Lam and Mr. Lin Keping.
Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee held two meetings during the year with attendance rate of
100%.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution, through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial

information and related disclosure and reviewing connected transactions.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam and Mr.
Lin Keping. The Company had formulated written terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements of

the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors. It also takes into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate to the duties and performance of the respective
individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are competitive

and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year

with an attendance rate of 100%.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. To maintain
high quality of the Board with a balance of skills and experience, the
Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors
when necessary. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act
as a director, the Board will consider the experience, qualification and
other relevant factors. During the year, there was no change in the

composition of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and

estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 26 to 27 of this

Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$1,773,000 (2007: HK$1,812,000), of which a
sum of HK$1,676,000 (2007: HK$1,696,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.
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The fees paid to KPMG for services rendered are set out as below:

AEERETREHMEHAAER 2R
BN 2ERNT :

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Statutory audit SEEER 1,676 1,696
Non-audit services IEEZITE 174 237
Total azE 1,850 1,933

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and the
internal auditors, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of these systems
at least annually, covering all material controls, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The process used
in reviewing the effectiveness of these internal control systems includes
discussion with management on risk areas identified by management.
The purpose of the Company’s internal control is to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so

that the Company’s objectives can be achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

There was no in-house internal audit function during the year, but the
Company has outsourced internal audit services to a firm of professional
accountants to review annually specific areas of concern identified by the
management or the Audit Committee. The outsourced internal auditors
undertook an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2008 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 83. Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company as well
as YGM Trading Ltd. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th &
9th term of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until
he reached the retirement age. Having been a Justices of the Peace since
1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and 6 years
later in 2008 Dr. Chan was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan
received a Doctoral Degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001; then in 2007 an Honorary Doctoral
Degree of Social Sciences from City University of Hong Kong and in the
same year, an Honorary University Fellowship from University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1989) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 62. Received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science from
Yale University USA in 1969 and joined the Group in the same year.
Appointed Director in 1971, Managing Director in 1980 and Vice
Chairman of the Group and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. Mr. Chan has been
actively involved in garment manufacturing and marketing in the Far East
and the USA for over 30 years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and
the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 61. Received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in 1970.
Joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later became Sales
Manager. Appointed Director in 1977 and Managing Director in 1987. He
is also a Director of YGM Trading Limited; independent non-executive
Director of Times Limited, China Travel International Investment Hong
Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited.
Mr. Chan has participated in many textile negotiations with the USA and
Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He is a Standing Committee Member
of The 10th and |Ith of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Deputy of the 8th & 9th National People’s Congress of
China; Member of Commission on Strategic Development of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau
Special Administrative Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board;
Ex-Committee Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He
is the brother of Mr. Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 57. Joined YGM Singapore in 1978. Appointed Director of the
Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He is the brother of Mr.
Chan Wing Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Suk Man, Msc

Aged 60. Received Master of Science Degrees from the University of
Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve University USA
in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was appointed as
Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee and Mr. Chan
Wing To.
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Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FcA

Aged 60. Received a Bachelor’s degree from University of Manchester,
United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1973. Company Secretary of the Group from 1974 to 1988 and a
Director since 1977. Appointed Managing Director of YGM Trading Ltd
since 1987 and Chairman of Hang Ten Group Holdings Ltd since 2003.
Has been the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Ltd in 2006. He is
the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter
and Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan has been the Managing Director of the YGM Trading
Group since 2006. She joined the Group in 1973, was appointed
Director of the Group in 1983 and Deputy Managing Director of YGM
Trading Ltd in 1987. She has extensive experience of management in
the garment retail and wholesale business. Madam Chan is a Member
of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong S.A.R., a Member of the
Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council, a Member of the Board of Directors of
the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of Quality Tourism Services
Committee of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of Board of
Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association, a Member of the Executive Committee
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, the Director of Hong
Kong Design Centre, a member of DesignSmart Initiative Assessment
Panel, a Committee Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and Vice President
of Guangdong Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. She
received a Bachelor’s degree from Trent University, the United Kingdom
in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 57, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and
the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 58. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and was
promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been the
General Manager since 1993. On 29th November, 2005, Mr. So has been

appointed as Executive Director of the Company.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 73. An independent non-executive Director of the Company, is the
founding and senior partner of PKF Accountants & Business Advisers.
Mr. Leung obtained his fellowship with Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 1973. He is a non-executive director of Beijing
Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited and a number of

listed companies.

Wong Lam, OBE,Jp

Aged 89. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 1995.
Mr. Wong is a former member of the Legislative Council, a former
Standing Committee Member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Dongguan and a Director of Lung Cheong International
Holdings Ltd.

Lin Keping

Aged 69. Appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a member
of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultation Conference and an executive member of the Eighth All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal
and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an

executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd.
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NT LIMITED

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEAER

MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 60. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from Case
Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined the Group in
1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of Hong Kong
Knitters Ltd. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 50. General Manager of Sales Department, obtained the diploma
in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Master
Degree in Business Administration at University of East Asia, Macau. He

joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 46, General Sales Manager. Ms. Chui joined the Group in 1994, and
has over 20 years’ managerial experience in fasion business. She was
awarded Master of Business Administration (Fashion Business) by the

Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 42. Appointed as Financial Controller and Company Secretary
of the Group in 2000. She is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has over |5 years of

experience in auditing, accounting and business finance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RBERE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 28 to |46, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 3lst
March, 2008, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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NT LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RBERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31|st
March, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28th July, 2008
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YANGTZEK

BT # XK

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mERERE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

2008 2007
—EENE —EELHF
Note $°000 $°000
i Fr T
Turnover EE3 3 1,540,276 1,725,435
Cost of sales SHERA (1,269,541) (1,382,430)
Gross profit EF 270,735 343,005
Other revenue Hiug A 6,843 12,471
Other net income Hinl = F58 40,324 24,482
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHHER (132,484) (131,862)
Administrative expenses THEHR (93,879) (87,960)
Other operating expenses HigEEH (22,988) (45,610)
Profit from operations SRR 68,551 114,526
Finance costs BE A 5(2) (10,803) (19,099)
Share of profits less losses of FE(LEEE D RRF]
associates WEE 1,523 (343)
Share of profits less losses of EhEE DT
jointly controlled entities mARE S 19 76,987 14,121
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARERE = (9,296)
Impairment loss of an associate Bt N\ TRERER 18 (4,000) -
Net valuation gains on REMELERE
investment properties RER 18,866 10,231
Profit before taxation B BE B s R 5 151,124 110,140
Income tax Frigst 6(a) (9,174) (13,670)
Profit for the year EERF 141,950 96,470
Attributable to: EEREN
Equity shareholders of AT RAE
the Company EEA 142,240 96,706
Minority interests DERRER (290) (236)
Profit for the year NEERF 141,950 96,470
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-ZZNF=ZA=+—RILFE (UEBT)

R WL /K 1 R A #

2008 2007
—2EN\F —ETLF
Note $°000 $°000
Kt Fr Fr
Dividends payable to equity EREAGRRERFEA
shareholders of the Company TEERE :
attributable to the year: 10
Interim dividend declared RERBERZ
during the year hHIR B 10,518 6,311
Final dividend proposed after the REERRERIRE
balance sheet date RERE 37,866 31,555
48,384 37,866
Earnings per share BRER
Basic E-WN I $0.68 $0.46

The notes on pages 40 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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YANGTZEK

BT # XK

30

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 (X&)

2008 2007
—EENF ZEELE
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
ird Fr Fr Fr Fr
Non-current assets EREBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 13(a)
Investment properties REYE 100,432 86,677
Other property, plant HiE - B&E
and equipment PET] 160,292 146,607
Interests in leasehold land BEREHEZBH
held for own use under HELT
operating leases 2,125 262,849 6,955 240,239
Construction in progress FEIR 14 291 42
Intangible assets WMILEE 15 2,874 2,874
Goodwill e 16 = -
Interest in associates Bt N T RER 18 12,110 14,671
Interest in jointly SE DTS
controlled entities 19 428,655 314,042
Other financial assets HihemERE 20 1,453 4,586
Deferred tax assets EIEFEMERE 27(b) 1,204 -
709,436 576,454
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =75 21 162,114 139,038
Trade and other FEURBRFR R EL b
receivables BEWIFR 22 288,557 324,105
Tax recoverable o IER A 27(a) 1,008 1,493
Cash and cash equivalents HERRELZEEY 23 96,838 80,055
548,517 544,691
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables EAER R EMENR 24 288,339 301,578
Bank loans RITER 25 78,434 104,624
Tax payable FEARE 27(a) 10,702 3,806
377,475 410,008
Net current assets REBEETE 171,042 134,683
Total assets less EEAEH
current liabilities REEE 880,478 711,137
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NT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZBEZEN\F=ZA=+—8 (LUBT:)

2008 2007
—BENE 238 -3
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
et F FrT Fr Fr
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITERK 25 - 11,250
Provision for long service RERH%S
payments K 28 24,531 3,591
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFREHAR 27(b) 16,997 41,528 16,819 31,660
NET ASSETS EEFE 838,950 679,477
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARf#E 29(a)
Share capital BRI 105,184 105,184
Reserves e 732,996 573,547
Total equity attributable ERERAATRE
to equity shareholders BB AERAE
of the Company 838,180 678,731
Minority interests DERRER 770 746
TOTAL EQUITY DB 838,950 679,477

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28th July, 2008.

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Kee

The notes on pages 40 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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YANGTZEK

BT # XK

32

BALANCE SHEET

EEREXR

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 (X&)

2008 2007
—ZEN\F —EELE
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
L 77 2 77 i
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13(b)
Investment properties REYE 119,114 101,094
Other property, plant HtE - B&E
and equipment e 40,673 35,490
159,787 136,584
Intangible assets B|ILEE 15 2,384 2,384
Interest in subsidiaries ML FER 17 133,841 137,120
Interest in associates NG £ 18 10,436 10,436
Interest in jointly SENEER
controlled entities 19 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HihemEE 20 1,453 4,586
538,719 521,928
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 37,196 56,585
Trade and other receivables FEWERR R H it
receivables FEWFh 22 239,265 284,646
Cash and cash equivalents HENEEZEY 23 41,681 25,116
318,142 366,347
Current liabilities P=N
Trade and other payables FE 1 BR AN % HL A FE 1S3 24 161,668 207,886
Bank loans RITER 25 67,420 49,013
Tax payable FE(SRLIE 27(a) 8,513 2,163
237,601 259,062
Net current assets REBEETRE 80,541 107,285
Total assets less BELER
current liabilities REEE 619,260 629,213
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I YA NT LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
BEAER

At 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 (X&)

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Wi Fi Fi 77 i
Non-current liabilities EkRBER
Bank loans RITER 25 - 7,500
Provision for long service RERH%S
payments K 28 2,084 1,946
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFEHRAR 27(b) 21,521 17,654
23,605 27,100
NET ASSETS EESHE 595,655 602,113
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEERRH#E 29(b)
Share capital RN 105,184 105,184
Reserves e 490,471 496,929
TOTAL EQUITY ESEE 595,655 602,113
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28th July, 2008. EEECREENELtAZ-Z+N\B%E
RIRERMG LEHIERE -
) )
Chan Sui Kau ) R 25 2R )
)  Directors ) EE
Chan Wing Kee ) [k 7Kk A5 )
) )
The notes on pages 40 to 146 form part of these financial statements. FABEZI46E M TB R IEH T 2 — 3B
3 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERSER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (LKET)

2008 2007
—BENF —2RtR
Note $°000 $°000 $000 $000
g3 F F F F
Total equity at Ist April RIWB— Bz REmEE
- attributable to equity - ERBERAATF
shareholders of BREFEA
the Company 29(a) 678,731 583,615
— minority interests - DYRRER 29(a) 746 -
679,477 583,615
Net income recognised HERESPEIZ
directly in equity: Wz FEE
Exchange differences on BESBUNBAR
translation of financial BB RERCELZH
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 29(a) 19,986 5,359
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFERRS
and buildings, net of EHIRREL S
deferred tax 29(a) - 253
Share of associates’ BEEEATAREELT
and jointly controlled B %A
entity’s exchange reserve 29(a) 39,296 18,929
59,282 24,541
Net profit for the year REERAFEHE 29(a) 141,950 96,470
Total recognised income and AEECRAZ
expense for the year BARX 201,232 121,011

34
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NT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

2008 2007
—BENF “ERRLF
Note $°000 $°000 $000 $000
Mz FT FT F Fr
Attributable to: ERHER
Equity shareholders of the RAEREREA
Company 201,522 121,247
Minority interests DERRER (290) (236)
201,232 121,011
Dividends declared or FERSRERER
approved during the year ZBRE 29(a) (42,073) (23,140)
Movements in equity arising ERERSMEE
from capital transactions: ZHERBE
— capital injection by - PERRBRARA
minority shareholders 29(a) 314 982
Reserves transferred to the REBTESER: 29(a)
income statement on:
- disposal of subsidiaries - HEMB LR
and associates NG - (2,991)
Total equity at 3Ist March R=ZB=+—-HEZHEHE 838,950 679,477
The notes on pages 40 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F40EZ 46B WM BE A KRR 2 — 28
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YANGTZEK

BT # XK

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mRERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

2008 2007
ZBENF ZEELHF
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr Frr
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation BR AR A 151,124 110,140
Adjustments for: HEIER
— Share of profits less losses - L EE D RRFE R
of associates (1,523) 343
— Share of profits less losses of - BhEE AT RREER
jointly controlled entities (76,987) (14,121)
- Depreciation -E 5(c) 24,243 27,733
— Net valuation gains on investment - REMFEGEREFE
properties (18,866) (10,231)
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - HERBLATERE - 9,296
— Gain on disposal of fixed assets - HEEEEEKRE 4 (18,625) (16,085)
— (Reversal of)/ impairment losses on - FEWERTR
trade, other receivables and HihERF R EKER
loans receivable 2 (Bm) /REEE 5(c) (924) 21,375
- Impairment loss of an associate - BEARRESR 4,000 -
— Amortisation of land lease premium - HE i FEE 5(c) i 147
— Interest expenses - FBXH 5(a) 10,803 19,099
— Interest income - FMEWA 4 (1,456) (993)
— Loss on interest rate - FIEEBENZER
swap agreement 4 219 809
— Gain on fair value of forward - RAMESHN D TFERZ RE
exchange contracts 4 (1,162) -
- Dividend income from unlisted -k EmRARESZ
equity securities A ON 4 (403) (386)
— Tax refund upon reinvestment of - ABEDRARELA
dividend income from BREZEH
a former associate 4 = @2.114)
— Foreign exchange gain -EXWS 2,562 (1,480)
Operating profit before changes in EEESBEACERA
working capital 73,116 143,532
ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 sEE¥EH



NT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

2008 2007
ZBENF ZETLHF
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr Frr
Increase in inventories FEEM (23,076) (14,369)
Increase in debtors, AR - RERENRE
deposits and prepayments 120 (12,562) (63,234)
Decrease in bills receivable ERZEERD 39,108 21,535
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due EWEERRRE
from related companies "D/ (8m) 1,825 (748)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors and FEHEE AR ESTE A
accrued charges W)/ 1Em (12,197) 19,462
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable EEH BORL) /#m (8,112) 23,912
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to ENBEEARRE
related companies #n,/( fJi/J‘) 3,492 (2,660)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to ENEELAAREEAFNE
associates and jointly controlled #m, ( iJﬁQ\
entities 3,538 (1,319)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due P —BREFEE M, (RD)
to a shareholder 40 (434)
Increase/(decrease) in long service RERBESEMN/ (BD)
payments 20,940 (681)
Cash generated from operations RELEFMERE 86,112 124,996
Tax paid [SEEE/AC
- Hong Kong profits tax paid - EREBREH (5,339) (3,083)
— Tax refunded/(paid) -RE/ (Bff) BBLUNE
outside Hong Kong 2,198 (4,236)
Net cash generated from RETHAENRL TR
operating activities 82,971 117,677
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mRERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-ZZNF=ZA=+—RILFE (UEBT)

2008 2007
—EENF ZEELHF
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr Frr
Investing activities REEH
Payments for purchase of fixed assets BEEEEEMNR (21,825) (31,238)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HEREEEMERA 24,311 26,854
Payments for construction in progress EEIEMAR (1,373) (11,550)
Interest received EWFIE 1,456 993
Dividend received from associates BWEE N ZRE 2,965 11,757
Dividend received from unlisted equity ERFELTRABSZRE
securities 403 386
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMBATZ
subsidiaries BERAEEE 30(a) = (3,845)
Refund of tax paid by an associate from | EZ RN FREWABREZER
reinvestment of dividend income - 2,114
Refund of prepayment of investment REFAMNTERE - 33,235
Proceeds from sale of associates FEEHEBENTRER
in the previous year 16,000 83,061
New loans to suppliers HEHEEER (5,000) -
Repayment of loans receivable BEERKER 2,211 2,459
Net cash generated from RETHAEHRLSFE
investing activities 19,148 114,226
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NT LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mRERERER

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (LKET)

2008 2007
ZBENF ZEELHF
Note $°000 $°000
Mt For Frr
Financing activities BEEs
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (323,562) (868,985)
New bank loans HIBRITER 286,122 714,841
Capital contribution from minority DERRMOBABZA
shareholders 314 982
Interest paid 2RFE (10,803) (17,329)
Dividend paid BIRRE (42,073) (23,140)
Net cash used in financing METHRIANRETFE
activities (90,002) (193,631)
Net increase in cash and REeRALEEY
cash equivalents bchipecd-cl 12,117 38,272
Cash and cash equivalents REUA—AZEERALEEY
at Ist April 80,055 39,870
Effect of foreign exchange PMEHBRBH 2
rates changes 4,666 1,913
Cash and cash equivalents R=A=t-HZzEEK
at 31st March HEZEY 23 96,838 80,055

The notes on pages 40 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information of any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation and measurement

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3lst
March, 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates

and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is

the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except as set out in the

accounting policies below.

(k)

TEEREBE

BHIEH

FUBHMERRRRAEER 2T B
BHRELA(EBHBREED )
DEBEFMAS(FESHMAE)
Bz R EER @R E BB ®
HER - FRGTER(EBSTE
Al MzR SBARSTRANE
BRARPZRE 2GS mE - A8
BERTFEEBHSXZMERD
AEFEmRACERBERE - U
THAAEERAZEESTBRME -

BRSO SCEME THITRE
BRI 2B BMBREER  AREAK
BERAABZAETHBERERS
AR PR - RYIRE M &
BRAEERTRBESHHBMER
2B BERS BT RN ZE IR
RZEW - BIRHEE2 -

EENGEEE

BE-ZEN\FZA=Z+-HLEFE
MEEHBHREX  BEAXARAEM
BRA(BAIAEE]) RAEER

BEATRAE AT ZES -

FEEWBAR BEQARGED
ARBEZHBRRFEFEZIHEBENE
AZEREECTERERECE
FFE(TThEEEX ) - GEaMBHRRU
RATMIIEEEBTEY -

FUBHRERERBEELRAEER
BT IS BEMALE RIS -

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#H



NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Basis of preparation and measurement (continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates

with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are

discussed in note 36.

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its

activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently

are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated

financial statements from the date that control commences until

the date that control ceases.

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#

()

TESTBER (&)

mRNGEEE(H)
BEMBRELENFRNMBENT
EEEER ARV B ERMEL HE
RETRBR - ZEHE - T RER
FESHHENER  URFME2HZ
EE BE WARIHNEHE-&
EREENRE S50 R KL AR
REMHERE  HSBEREEE
KRNEHERABRTRRASENEA
EREEHFTL - BRERATEEMT
HIRER o

REAFEETHTREBRROT
B AN BNRAEZEE
B AARANSEEATEENES
TR -MRZESTETNERLE
ERMNRNEE  BEENTER
EMMURIERER -

&I RO BE P B R R S 2 B B T E
MSEHTBRREERNT BN
NIRRT FEFEERARNM
&F - BEIRMIFE36 ©

MEQRARDBRRERS

MEBARREZASEZFNER-
EXEEEREEE-BRCUBRE
ERR WEBZERBIEKSE
REBEEEZEBRVZSE - T
fREFIER BRI TERTERN
BERZEERERBEN -

RBARIRE  HERESHAZES
REEEZFKLBEMARETH
HERRA -

41



42

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group consolidated transactions, are eliminated in
full in preparing the financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the total profit or loss for the year between minority

interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority
interests in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess and any further
losses attributable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of

losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is

stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(m)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its

management, including participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that

the Group or the Company and one or more of the other parties

share joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the associates’ or the jointly controlled entities’ net assets, unless
it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associates and jointly controlled entities for the year,
including any impairment of goodwill relating to the investment in

associates and jointly controlled entities recognised for the year

(see note I(e) and I(m)).

When the Group’s share of loss exceeds its interest in the
associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or the jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate or the jointly controlled entity is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance

form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the

jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y =E

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . EREEEMA)

....... (SONBINUEA) | e s et

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued) d) BEATREELQT (HF)
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between AEBHEBENRAREE NG ZHE
the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities are REMEENARERIBE  HERAE
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate EEHELARSEGE QA MhzERE
or jointly controlled entity, except where unrealised losses provide LERIKEE ; BROKRSRBEEBERD
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case EEEELRRBE RMELERERE
they are recognised immediately in the income statement. BENRESHBERRAER -

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates and ARNREEABRITIRELE QAR
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses EERTMRE  BREANBERE
(see note |(m)), unless they are classified as held for sale (or BEEBEMZTI(m)BAKR BRIES
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale (see BRERIEAEEELEZRER
note 1(y)). BEESEAFEREHECHEAR

(BHEMHEE(y)) °

(e) Goodwill (e) BB
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business BEINBESHAREBEQATRE
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly ENTRR AN E IR AR E B R UE
controlled entity over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of ENTRBEE EERAEEREN
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. NEFEE -
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see BEERAFHESTREBREE (2
note |(m)). Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is BMEIm)) BRI FESE
tested annually for impairment. In respect of associates or jointly BB YASFEREYNS o B
controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill is included ENTREELATMS  BENERE
in the carrying amount of the interest in the associate or jointly BEEEEREEQARARNEE N aER
controlled entity. ZIRE{ER °
Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the EREGHIREBEQATAREGED
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities T EREBEEGEINEE N8
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in an HEE BEERREEBHNAFEEE
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately in BREAE BEHNESBEVHNEESE
the income statement. RER -
On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate or a jointly EFEERALEE—ReEESEN R
controlled entity during the year, any attributable amount of ENRREE AR FTEHEEMNH
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or EEBETTATMNAIRENEAEGE
loss on disposal. S5 o
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(e) Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill, which arose prior to Ist January, 2001, which had
previously been taken directly to reserves will not be recognised
in the income statement on disposal or impairment of the acquired
business, or under any other circumstances. On disposal of the

acquired business, the related goodwill will be transferred to

retained profits.

(f) Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity

securities other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be

reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses (see note |(m)).

Investments in other securities are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,

with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity,

except for impairment losses (see note |(m)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group

commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately to
the income statement, except where the derivatives qualify for cash
flow hedge accounting in which case recognition of any resultant

gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see

note |(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of
the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk of
a committed future transaction, the effective portion of any gain or
loss on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument to fair

value is recognised directly in equity. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income statement.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the

initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset or

liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the associated
gain or loss is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement in the same period or periods during which the asset

acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement in the same period

or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects the

income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected

to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in

equity is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed assets

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note I(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These

include land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in the income statement. Rental income from

investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1 (v) ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied

to other investment properties leased under finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-TT
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NF=ZR=+—RILFE (L EBT)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(i) Fixed assets (continued)

(i) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment

are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note |(m)):

freehold land;

land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held

under an operating lease (see note |(l)(i));

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A
of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” with the
effect that land and buildings which have been revalued
in prior years have not been revalued at the balance
sheet date. Such properties are stated at their carrying
value less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses and will not be revalued in future years.

buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the

leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note

1 (1)(i)); and

other items of plant and equipment.
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income

statement on the date of retirement or disposal.

Upon disposal of land and buildings which were revalued in
prior years, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and building revaluation reserve to retained

profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

- Freehold land is not depreciated;

- Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the remaining term of the lease;

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after

the date of completion;

- Plant and machinery between 4 to 10 years;

—  Otbher fixed assets between 3 to 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note I(m)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
incurred, including any attributable financing costs, during the
periods of construction and installation. The asset concerned is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
are completed, at which time it commences to be depreciated in

accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is definite) and impairment losses (see note
I(m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is

recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the assets’

estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation and any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets

with finite lives as set out above.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

() Leased assets
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of leased assets to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating

leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is

accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note

I(i)(i)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . TESFHEEH)

....... COMENUED) ot et

() Leased assets (continued) (y HEEEE)

(i)  Operating lease charges (i) HEHELH

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating NEAEEEAKEHEFERE
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the EWNER  BRBEASELENHS
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting NEEHElMmAENEsT il
periods covered by the lease term, except where an Ao USEBEERERNE . B
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of EHMEEREFERWRUEE
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives EEMEENIZERBIBRS o
received are recognised in the income statement as an KREHEHZBTRNZBEEE
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. HEBZERTEIABEFLX
Contingent rentals are charged to the income statement in BENARTD HBEHEEEH
the accounting period in which they are incurred. EENSHHRREERRNR -
The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is BIEREHEFEE L2 W
amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the lease BRAEATITRIEERRNUEERE LS
term except where the property is classified as an investment o ERMESIBEARREWER
property (see note |(i)). Blos (ZBMEEG)) °

(m) Impairment of assets (m) EERE

() Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () MRAFEHKEREME W E

receivables
Investments in equity securities (other than investments in BEZBZREMWE QR - B
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities: see ENAREBEDNTZRERINSG
note |(m)(ii)) and other current and non-current receivables B B 5 1 (m) (1)) &% 32 A A = 4 i
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as HAAEDEAATHERSFIR
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet ZREFSRENEMGANPRE
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of I PRRZNREBEEERE
impairment. TER UBREREHBEREZ

EHRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about one or more

of the following loss events:
—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the

debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined

and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial assets and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses

for equity securities are not reversed.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of the asset), where
the effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets with

credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

For trade and other current receivables carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset

where the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (continued)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised directly in equity is removed
from equity and is recognised in the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in the income statement is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in the income

statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised

directly in equity.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the

income statement.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFBEK(EF)

(m) EERE (&)

Bt & EHE
EEEEEHAIBMIIRNESR
YREER  WBEETIEESR
BHBARETSR  RERLUEER
NREBRTEFERSERD
(BBRIERI)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

property, plant and equipment (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts);

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being

M ERRE (REMR
HETIBRNIZERRID)

BEREETHREEZSER

held under an operating lease; REEHERE
- intangible assets; BREE,

investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly

controlled entities; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated

to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,

if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is

not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment losses is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to the income statement in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see notes |(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which

the interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(o)

P)

(q)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter are stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note |(m)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using

the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note |(u)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(s)

(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow

statement.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
nonmonetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment
or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy
by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic

possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can

be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible

differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#

TESTBER (&)

Frig®i ()

EEFFEHEEMEED B M ATED
MEBREREZEEEL TREZERE
EENBEEMBERE LNREASHE
HELEENEBENRERNE
R REEFRSHEE LT UHRFA
AEMBEMANARRIERELE

BT REFROGMERI - FIEE
EFREHEENEERSHERE (R
RARAREE SRR AZIELT S8
EEREBEMPRRERER) BSH®
RoXFEIAATENERERRE
FIEEFEREENRRESTENE
FEEDEAFENEREREEM
EEMEE BELERNERMLE
HE-HEKBERR-EHERER
B rRHMETENESERENE
ERE - BERELERSHEEMRE
AREHEETARRR @A RS
WEEANER - EREBAFENE
BEREZERRDEAXISEIBKRF
R R 40 AR 48 M B R 9 R P AE VIR
EFFEREER  FEKRAR %R
MERERHER-HBEHERE &
RERAH URERHEEEAR
FAAENEER KRR NE—
HEAED -

THRARELEMEHEENEENY
KRERRELXAUT ARG M
AT ERB I HESNRNEE
THEEHAEREINEERER
MAEER (NBEKSHN—HD
BIBRSM) 5 AR IREM B D B (WFFE
BER > RRNASETZEHED
HESRE - MEE A ERNERR KT
RREONERER RWBAEDE
2 ARRARITEESRELMNE
8) -

61



YANGTZEK

=

L #® XK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits

will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

TESTBER (&)

Frig®i (&)

EEFREHARZREENAGRE
THENEHERLEELIR  BER
FEANSEREERMBEFE -
EEFREHREEMBBYTHRAE -

rEEEESEEE B EHELRSE
REENRESHE MREAEERS
THEURESE AN EREFR UK
HENBRENS  ZELEREHEE
WIREESHESAE BERORAR
XAREESREANEREF - M
HESHEQD -

EokREMBINELENFEREE
XANHEERENWE TR -

FHPAELEFSRESRASBES
DRIR LERTFEE - RBNE
EFREHEERSGEARARLEH
BERETEEUAPEHERERH
REFFEHAE  YAFSUTHS
REFBIBERT » AT LAy B S5 AN A
MIEE RSB EME -

- AHFREHREENEE  A2FH
FAREENBRFHREELH
FENERZEENEEZE
=

I

- EEFRSHEENEE: BLE
ENMEBEXAER -HRERER
LT Eeh — BRI RSB aRE

- BE-EHER R

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#H



NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t) Income tax (continued)

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in the income statement on initial recognition
of any deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued by
the Company in respect of the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries, the asset identified is a form of capital
contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost of the investment in

the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantees (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance
with notel (u)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Company or
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Company or the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,

less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate, and
the amount that would be determined in accordance with
note |(u)(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued are disclosed

in accordance with note | (u)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(u) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(v) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)  Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which are taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in the income statement in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

(v) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in the income statement on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised in the income statement as revenue on a

systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income

statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling

at the dates the fair value was determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after Ist January, 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before Ist January,
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the

date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that
foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss

on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they
are capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(y) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale
if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed of
together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly

associated with those assets that will be transferred in the

transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below), or disposal
groups, are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would

continue to be measured in accordance with the policies set out

elsewhere in note I.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
the income statement. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified

as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or

amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(z) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the

group;
(ii) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in

which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group, or a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a

related party of the Group.
Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(aa) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to

risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial

statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and fixed assets. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances
and transactions are between Group enterprises within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those

available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that

are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and

financing expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (LKET)
2.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, BRtEBEEH

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the

Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a
result of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the amendment to
HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures, there

have been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those instruments, compared with the information previously
required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation. These disclosures are provided

throughout these financial statements, in particular in note 31.

The amendment to HKAS | introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and
the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes

for managing capital. These new disclosures are set out in note

29(f).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS | do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and measurement

of the amounts recognised in the financial instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 37).
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RPTERNVHEND E - BRARE
ERHAEMEANTE -

AEBURRAEAEEFNSEE
MAREMWHERRZRRBESHEK T
37)°
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZTNF=-A=1t—RALFE L&)
3. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, the provision of processing services
and the rental of properties. The principal activities and other

particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 147 to 148.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers, fee income from processing services and rental income

from external customers and is analysed as follows:

FAEETEEBRRRERHEENR
KRHBE REMTREMNYWER
E-MBARCEEERREMER
HENEI47EEI48E -

EERRURBRLEFERNIEEE
BE-MIRBRARBEEA XD
T

2008 2007

—E2BNF —EELEF

$°000 $°000

FT T

Manufacture and BIEREERK 1,513,490 1,699,720
sale of garments

Manufacture and sale BLEREESE S 6,412 4,839

of textiles

Processing services IR KA 11,675 12,928

Property rental MEHRE 8,699 7,948

1,540,276 1,725,435
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 #£E R

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME = 4 HMWARKSZZFE ...
2008 2007
—EEN\F —EELF
$°000 $°000
FT T
Other revenue Hi g A
Commission income =AY ON 2,501 3,927
Tax refund upon HATEE AR EWA
reinvestment of BREZER
dividend income from
a former associate - 2,114
Dividend income from FLETRERSZ
unlisted equity securities BREWA 403 386
Interest income FE U A 1,456 993
Management fee income SEEBERHKA 804 804
Sundry income Hibugk A 1,679 4,247
6,843 12,471
Other net income Hibr A EH
Gain on disposal of quota HEBZE = 10,165 1,305
Net exchange gain E R FRE 5,763 8,726
Profit on sale of SEEREMPLEF
raw materials 2,541 4,009
Gain on disposal of HEBEEEE WS
fixed assets 18,625 16,085
Net claims income/ BEEFRA S (ZH)
(expense) 1,814 (7,852)
Loss on interest rate swap FEREHEHZEE
agreement 219) (809)
Gain on fair value of forward EHENIESHAFEE
exchange contracts Z Uk 1,162 -
Others Hity 473 3,018
40,324 24,482
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B o® ok i R A W

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 ¥R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-ZZNF=ZA=+—RILFE (LEBT)

5...PROFIT BEFORETAXATION . ... 5. BRE3EA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BELADEFIE MR (FTA) -
2008 2007
—BRBNF BBt
$°000 $°000
F7 Fi
(a) Finance costs: () RERA:
Interest on bank loans BEROFREBHEEZ
wholly repayable RITERFE
within five years (BERITER)
(including bank
charges) 10,803 17,329
Loss on discounting of BRI ERE FRE 1B
loans receivable RS 8 AR5 BR
stated at amortised
cost - 1,770
10,803 19,099
(b) Staff costs: * (b) BIMA&:*
Salaries, wages and e IERHEMEF
other benefits 217,827 195,710
Contributions to B L ROR R ET Sl ALK
defined contribution
retirement schemes 3,738 3,484
Provision/ (reversal) REBRBESEE
for long service (#50m)
payments 20,940 (137)
242,505 199,057
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(continued)

BB A E R ()

BRBLADER S HBR 7 (REA) @ ()

2008 2007
—EBN\F —EELEF
$°000 $°000
FrT Fr
(c) Other items: () HtmA:

Cost of inventories” FE KRR 1,269,541 1,382,430
Amortisation of land TAE Lt FIE

lease premium” 11 147
Depreciation” wE” 24,243 27,733
(Reversal of)/ FEU BR AR ~ H Atk

impairment losses &N

on trade, other EWER

receivables and 2 (&mE)/

loans receivables WAEEE (924) 21,375
Auditors’ ZE RN &

remuneration 1,773 1,812
Operating lease REHEER

charges:

minimum lease BIEEES R

payments”

— property rentals -MEZEE 4,102 3,491
Rentals receivable REVERKES

from investment WEEXH

properties less 1,803,0007T

direct outgoings of (ZEZLHF:

$1,803,000 1,815,0007T)

(2007: $1,815,000) (6,896) (6,133)

# Cost of inventories includes $111,254,000 (2007: $91,842,000) relating to # GFERFACBIZEETHKEX ITEEF -

HEL A EHEREEHEE
BB B 11,254,000 (ZEFE+
F 1 91,842,000T) - BEESEEEI 270
AELEXSBI T2 EEEHEA
HEEEH o

staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation of land lease premium and
operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these type of

expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)

6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:

REBERARNAEHR

(a) BABERTFRMFERS

2008 2007
—2EN\E —ERLF
$°000 $°000
FrT Fr
Current tax — REBE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERNEBHR
Provision for the year RER 1 EH 8,728 7,714
Under-provision in LEFERERIR
respect of prior years 310 154
9,038 7,868
Current tax AEHIE
- Tax outside —-BHBBE
Hong Kong
Provision for the year RERHERH 1,472 3414
1,472 3,414
Deferred tax EAE S B
(Reversal)/ origination HEEEMN
of temporary differences (@) EXE
(note 27(b)) (KtaE27(b)) (1,216) 2,388
Effect of decrease in tax FERF=EHMOA—H
rate on deferred tax EIEFTS B 46k
balances at | April ZHE (120) -
(1,336) 2,388
9,174 13,670

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is calculated at
17.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

year.

—EE\EEFBANESHEBRERSEN
FEZATEFFERNIT75% (==
FLFE D 17.5%) B RETE -

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 H£E ¥R



LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 2% Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)
6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6. RABHXRFMRNFAEHR (&

On 27th February, 2008, the Financial Secretary of the Hong Kong R-ZBEBENFE-_A=-++tH BBH
SAR Government announced his annual Budget which proposes a BITHEBRFMEAERA MY KE
cut in the profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect from BR CBEBEREBE-_SEZEN —ETLEF
the fiscal year 2008/09. Accordingly, whilst the provision for Hong MBEEZMNEHRHEHI75%FHK
Kong Profit Tax for 2008 is calculated at 17.5% of the estimated B65% I —EENEEFB
assessable profits for the year, deferred tax is calculated at 16.5% FEHRERBSREFFETFERABEN
(2007: 17.5%) of the temporary difference at the balance sheet 175%:1 & ELEBERELEERY
date. RERMNI6SS(ZFZLF 1 17.5%)
ETE
On l6th March, 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth R-ZBBELtEFE=ZA+~<B E+E2
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax BARKRASERXRASZER T (H
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “New Tax Law”) ZEARENBECERESH L ([HH
which has taken effect on Ist January, 2008. Further, on 6th ED o B ER-_ZEENE—-—HF—H
December, 2007, the State Council released the Implementation BER o WH BBEREZZLE
Rules to the Corporate Income Tax Law (the “Implementation TR RNEBEGT(EEMEHEE
Rules”). Effective from Ist January, 2008, the New Tax Law and ARG ([BREM]) -BZZFZFN
Implementation Rules enact the standard tax rate of 25% for the F—B—HE FBENEREKGE
Group’s PRC subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, EXAEERFTENHMBELAT  HEAQ
which had applicable tax rate of 27% and 33%. Taxation for these AMEE DR WEERE /% &
PRC’s subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities were LRARUERBWE AR ER27%H
calculated at either 27% or 33% of the estimated assessable profits B E-_BEENEFE—HF—HA &
prior to |st January, 2008. CEARNWNELR  BEARNNEGEDR

TR IE 2R AT E T ROR R LA27%
WMIZ%M TR EGFTE o

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, certain BIEFREMNAEREE  NEBEMNIBD
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is eligible for the exemption from FEMBATTEEEERNFEER
income tax for two years starting from the first profitable year of NWRERBFAESR LEEEB=ZFR
operations and thereafter, a 50 percent relief from their applicable YHKREGTEHBATNBERAB =R
tax rate for the following three years (the “tax holiday”). Pursuant TRBE]) BRBEBRE-ZZ
to the notice on the Implementation Rules of the Grandfather tE+ AT+ ABEANCKERE
Relief under the New Tax Law, Guofa (2007) No.39 issued on EEMEHRBEEERENELN)
26th December, 2007 by the State Council, these PRC subsidiaries (B 2%[2007139%%) » EEF B K B LD
will continue to enjoy the tax holiday under the grandfathering A REFFINBERCHES
provision of the New Tax Law. The applicable tax rate for these GHRP H-EZTN\E—-—HF—HiE -
PRC subsidiaries was revised to 25% effective from Ist January, ZEWMBARBRAZEEREREITA
2008. These PRC subsidiaries will be subject to the standard tax 25%c B FE M E AR AR R
rate of 25% after the tax holiday. BRI EET R FRTEH o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

Pursuant to the New Tax Law passed on |6th March, 2007, a
10% withholding tax will be levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the PRC effective from Ist January, 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. Further to the issuance of Guofa (2007) No. 39, the
Ministry of Finance and State Administration of Taxation released
notice Caishui (2008) No.l on 22nd February, 2008, stating that
the distributions of the pre-2008 earnings of a foreign invested
enterprise to a foreign investor in 2008 or later will be exempted

from withholding tax.

Taxation for other overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

countries.

REBRRFTNAEHR (&)

RE-_ZZLF=A T+ AEBHH
Bt PECE[OMEREESIRKN
RER-ZZENF—A—ABREHR
10%HIFEM B o FEIBEPEIREE K
FREER s HMMERKBEZH
BIAT IR AR TE MBI - 78
Bl 2%[2007]39%% % - BF Br &0 A B =X B
BEBRA-ZEZENFE_A=-+=RH#E
— BT BF[2008] ISEHEA - B
FHBENERECER—ZTNER
LEOMEREEIM_ZTENEZ
RMMBF > RHCEENR -

EINKT B D B 2 BT BIE A A AR B R
RERZBIIRERAE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RIFE (L&)
6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6. HGABHXRMRNFAESH (&)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIBBXHMEIHERIZREAN

applicable tax rates:

S B IR -

2008 2007
—2BNEF —ETLF
$°000 $°000
FT Fr
Profit before taxation R B Al & F 151,124 110,140
Notional tax on profit EREMHBEBEXESENN
before taxation, BAREFERBAER
calculated at the rates HE&EFIE
applicable to profits in
the countries concerned 26,230 29,539
Tax effect of non-deductible AT HNHRESE
expenses 4,238 6,007
Tax effect of non-taxable BAGFTHRKRANFREBEZE
revenue (15,729) (9,947)
Tax effect of unused SRAE AT EARERA I
tax losses not recognised EBENSESZE 288 1,529
Tax effect of tax losses AREEFEALA
not previously AERATEINEEZ
recognised but utilised BEsgE
in the current year (1,193) (5,331)
Tax effect of tax TEESBEENRETE
exempted entities (5,090) (8,281)
Under-provision in LWEEEREBTR
respect of prior years 310 154
Effect of changes in tax BHREHHEERENTE
rate on deferred tax 120 -
Actual tax expense EBRFELH 9,174 13,670
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION . . ... 7. EBZEMS ...
Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the BIEEBLATEHNEIIEZEEM
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: BARBzEEHESNT :
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2008
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme —EENE
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
= 4 RIS
Name of director EENSR =0k REAMER MEREA #®3 &%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F F Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau REREE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter RXERE 30 2,964 1,025 60 4,079
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Bk 4 30 2,730 1,550 60 4,370
Mr. Chan Wing To BKE £ £ 30 480 1,000 - 1,510
Ms. Chan Suk Man ALt 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel Foi ok 4 S A 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley BRRE Z+ 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon Alan BEELE 30 1,303 750 58 2,141

Independent non-executive BUFHITES

directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REERLE 160 - - - 160
Mr.Wong Lam IFE4E 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MREEE 60 - - - 60

520 10,604 6,525 238 17,887
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

7...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) .. 1. EZEME &) . ...
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2007
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme —EENE
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
= 4 RIS
Name of director EENSR ik REAMER MEREA % &%
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $°000
F F Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Chan Sui Kau REREE 30 1,463 700 - 2,193
Mr. Chan Wing Fui Peter RKELE 30 2,496 525 60 3,111
Mr. Chan Wing Kee Rk EE 30 2,470 1,050 60 3,610
Mr. Chan Wing To BKE £ £ 30 - 375 - 405
Ms. Chan Suk Man A xt 30 1,560 700 60 2,350
Mr. Chan Wing Sun Samuel Foi ok % S A 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling Shirley BRRE Z+ 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon Alan BEELE 30 1,221 560 55 1,866
Independent non-executive | BYFHTEES
directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REERLE 160 - - - 160
Mr.Wong Lam IFE4E 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MREEE 60 - - - 60
520 9,210 3,910 235 13,875

AEERMEBI Rz AUREME
ATHRERAES  KREWE 2D
R ESCIRET ©

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years
presented are all directors of the Company and details of their

emoluments are set out in note 7 above.

RATREFE ARG EF
ERRBREFAEAEREGESEREE
—ZECHARDAHBHERERNER
35,615,0007C (=B L : 39,684,000
JT) e

9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9.
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $35,615,000 (2007: $39,684,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.
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L # XK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RIFE (L&)
10. DIVIDENDS 10, RS

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (a) ERETARRESTEARFERSE

Company attributable to the year

2008 2007
ZEENF —EELHF
$°000 $°000
FrT Fr
Interim dividend EERRINFTHREER
declared and paid of 0.057T
$0.05 per share (ZZZE+45 :0.037T)
(2007: $0.03) 10,518 6,311
Final dividend proposed REEAREBIREREARE
after the balance B R0.187T
sheet date of $0.18 —EZtF  8Ro.157T)
(2007: $0.15) per share 37,866 31,555
48,384 37,866
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has REEBREZD RN ARERE
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. HAEGEBRRABEE -

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (b) ERFAAREZEEABR L —K
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FE YRFFELRERITHRE
approved and paid during the year

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect BAL—BHREE IR
of the previous financial REERERZARE
year, approved and paid R ESR0.157T
during the year of $0.15 —EZtF  §KRo.087T)
(2007: $0.08) per share 31,555 16,829
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B =

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ... . L BBREBN
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRELXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BREXRBRNTIBIEERENEAAF
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of IR R A FEALIE F142,240,0000T (=
$142,240,000 (2007: $96,706,000) and on 210,369,000 ordinary EELF :96,706,000T) N EFERT B
shares (2007: 210,369,000 shares) in issue throughout the year. TEBERRK 210,369,000 (=B =

+ 4 1210,369,0000%) 51 & -

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHER
The diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no BE-_ZZ+LtER-_ZZENFE=A
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years =+—HLEFEE  XQAUEEFE
ended 31st March, 2007 and 2008. E#ER O CEBER Bt #EE

EREFLETUNZR -

12. SEGMENT REPORTING 12, ZREE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s PHERTIRAEB XK RLED
business and geographical segments. Business segment information B2 EBoENERERERE
is chosen as the primary reporting format because it is more EERHFN EEEBLIFERRY
relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting. Geographical EREB A ERE - HHED
segment information has been chosen as the secondary reporting ERAEEREAREZHRLRN -
format.

Business segments £330

The Group comprises the following main business segments: AEEBRTHEEXKDIBARRK :

—  Manufacture and sale of garments: the manufacture, process, — BERHEERK: ®WEMIT
retail and wholesale of garments ZERMBRIK

- Manufacture and sale of textiles: the manufacture and - HERBEESHERD  HERHME
wholesale of textiles 45 4% e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B o

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTN\F=-_A=t+—HILHFE (L/(/ﬁyzaf)

84

Business segments X3l
Manufacture and Manufacture and
sale of garments sale of textiles Others Unallocated Consolidated
HERBERR  HEREEHER At K8 GREE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
CEENFCEEtE B\ FCERLF CEEN\F BT CEE\FCEELF CRENF CEELE
$°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr r r r r r r r r fr
Revenue from external REMNR
customers EFHRA 155,065 1702648 6412 4839 8,699 7948 - - 1540276 1725435
Other revenue Hit A 4,181 8,174 - - 804 804 1,858 3,493 6,843 12,471
Total revenue WAL 1,529,346 1,720,822 6,412 4839 9,503 8,752 1,858 3,493 1,547,119 1,737,906
Segment result ANEELES 58493 104633 691 45 7509 5948 1858 3493 68551 114526
Finance costs BERR (10,803) (19,099
Share of profits less BrEEAAR
losses of associates SEDNFRF
and jointly controlled HER
entites (T8T) 189 B34l 9559 (4344) 3930 - - T8I0 13778
Loss on disposal of HEKEB
subsidiaries NAER = (9,296)
Impairment of an associate | — K= A FHE (4,000 -
Net valuation gains on RENE
investment properties HERWES 18,866 10,231
Income tax g (9,174 (13,670)
Profit for the year KEE R 141,950 96,470
Depreciation and EERTERES
amortisation for the year 23,835 27,356 21 45 498 479 - - 24354 27,880
Segment assets PHEE 679,597 665,296 1,180 2,052 130,166 113,020 - - 810,943 780,368
Interest in associates REENFR
and jointly controlled '_'/L\\—HEﬁn
entities 5,853 9,828 428,655 314,042 6,257 4843 - - 440,765 328713
Unallocated assets A0EEE 6,245 12,064
Total assets BEGE 1,257,953 1,121,145
Segment liabilities PHEE 393,275 419,557 24 438 46 47 - - 393345 421,042
Unallocated liabilities ANEEE 25,658 20,626
Totallibilces BENE 419,003 441,668
Capital expenditure FEREARY
incurred during the year 23,829 48,254 - - - 2,449 - - 13829 50,703
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51 75 S 2% B o

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) ... . 12, DEBE M) o
Geographical segments &5 I
The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but AEENEBEREREM  TES
participates in four principal economic environments. ANEEENKBRELE -
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, EEAMESBEEE  2BWAR
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of UEFHNAEATTERE - 2 PE
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on EREXRMEXAIEE LA
the geographical location of the assets. EE®E

Revenue from
external customers

REIAEFHEA
2008 2007
—EBENF —EELHF
$°000 $°000
FrT Fr
— Europe — B
United Kingdom HE 352,301 521,254
France EE 44,474 116,553
Other European countries HAMWEMNE =R 492,160 439,479
— North America —db =M 239,989 245,136
— Asia Pacific - DmAME 376,083 372,746
— Others - Hith 35,269 30,267
1,540,276 1,725,435
Capital expenditure
incurred during
Segment assets the year
DEER FERERMX
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZE2RLHFE ZBEENF —ETLF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT FT Fr Fr
— Hong Kong -B8 413,357 473,407 4,259 8,783
—The PRC - HE 395,972 297,205 19,352 39,504
— South East Asia - 1,614 9,756 218 2,121
— Europe — B = - = 295
810,943 780,368 23,829 50,703
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bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

13 FIXED ASSETS e 13. BEEE ...,
(a) The Group () *5H
Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEAR BEGE
it BE At HEZAA

ERF?  REE BEREE MEORENE  BELH aif
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr 7z 7 r 7 77

Cost or valuation: RAZME
At Ist April, 2006 RZZEXEMA-A 121,79 187,211 107,535 416,542 79,638 8,525 504,705
Exchange adjustments ERRE 3,552 5871 949 10,372 498 144 11,014
Transfer from construction in ERARRIR
progress (note 14) (HEt14) - 10,341 1,195 11,536 - - 11,536
Additions BE 9,841 12,189 6,488 28518 2,449 271 31,238
Disposals i
- through disposal of -BBHENRBLR
subsidiaries (6,558) - (5,049)  (11,607) - - (11,607)
- others -Hftp (22,588)  (14,864) (6,560)  (44,012) - (607) (44,619
Reclassification from land and HiBREFEHIEE
buildings to investment RENZ
properties (561) - - (561) 561 - -
Reclassification from investment HMRENEEFIER
properties to land and buildings THRET 6,700 - - 6,700 (6,700) - -
Surplus on revaluation EfRER 289 - - 289 10,231 - 10,520
At 31st March, 2007 RZEZtE=A=1-H 112,471 200,748 104,558 417,777 86,677 8,333 512,787
Representing: I
Cost B 112,471 200,748 104,558 417,111 - 8,333 426,110
Valuation - 2007 b -—F5tE - - - - 86677 - 86,677
112,471 200,748 104,558 417,777 86,677 8,333 512,787
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_ZTNF=ZA=1T—RALFE ETi)

(a) The Group (continued)

13. BIEEE (&)

(a) XK (&)

Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BER kRe
fti HE £ HEZRA
k¥ k#% EREE M RENE HELH GEl
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
77 Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr 77
Cost or valuation: RS :
At Ist April, 2007 R-EZLEMA-A 12471 200,748 104,558 417,11 86,677 8333 512,787
Exchange adjustments ERREZ 5290 14,889 3,655 23,834 1,649 240 25,723
Transfer from construction in ERAAEIR
progress (note 4) (W5 14) - 424 667 1,091 - 38 1,129
Additions ®E - 10,483 11,342 21,825 - - 21,825
Disposals HE (8,637) (21,195) (6,544) (36,376) - (5,629) (42,005)
Reclassification from investment HRENEEHIBEZ
properties to land and buildings THRER 6,760 - - 6,760 (6,760) - -
Surplus on revaluation EfRE - - - - 18,866 - 18,866
At 31st March, 2008 R-BENE=A=1-H 115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
Representing: &
Cost RA 115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 - 2,982 437,893
Valuation - 2008 e -ZEENE - - - - 100,432 - 100,432
115,884 205,349 113,678 434911 100,432 2,982 538,325
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) .. ... 13. BEEE M) ..o
(a) The Group (continued) (a) &&KHE (&)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings Other use under
held for  Plant and fixed Investment  operating
own use machinery assets  Sub-total properties leases Total
BEAR BEGE
it BE At HEZAA

ERF?  REE BEREE MEORENE  BELH CE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr 7z 7 r 7 77

Accumulated amortisation 2 BERNE:

and depreciation:
At Ist April, 2006 RZBERENA-H 55,780 144,856 78,450 279,086 - 1,285 280,371
Exchange adjustments E A% 2,085 4017 1,508 7610 - 34 7,644
Charge for the year REEBERFE 8,106 8999 10,628 27733 - 147 27,880
Written back on disposals HEREE

~ through disposal of - ERHERELT

subsidiaries (6,266) - (3,231) (9,497) - - (9,497)

- others - Hith (15493) (12,747 (5522 (33762 - (88)  (33850)
At 31st March, 2007 RZE2BtF=A=1-H 44212 145,125 81833 271,170 - 1378 272,548
At Ist April, 2007 RZEE+EMA-A 44212 145,125 81,833 271,170 - 1,378 272,548
Exchange adjustments EHAR 2,210 9,854 2,757 14,821 - 72 14,893
Charge for the year REERHRIE 3,685 10,958 9,600 24,243 - 1l 24354
Weritten back on disposals HEBER (7,267) (19432) (8,916) (35,615) - (704) (36,319)
At 31st March, 2008 RZBENE=ZA=1-H 42,840 146,505 85,274 274,619 - 857 275476
Net book value: FERE:
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZBBNE=ZA=+-H 73,044 58,844 28,404 160,292 100,432 2,125 262,849
At 31st March, 2007 RIEE+E=F=1-H 68,259 55,623 22,725 146,607 86,677 6,955 240,239
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)

13. BIEEE (&)

(b) The Company (b) 2T
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BEBRN RE Hite
T REF k#E ETEE Mt REWME &%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: BASRfEE
At Ist April, 2006 RZEERFEA—-H 32,830 15,544 48,287 96,661 93,156 189,817
Additions BE - 1,677 1,094 2,771 - 2,771
Disposals s - (1,984) 323) (307 . (2,307)
Reclassification from land and IR EFEHIEE
buildings to investment REME
properties (561) - - (561) 561 -
Reclassification from investment | FRIREVEEHPES
properties to land and THREF
buildings 6,700 - - 6,700 (6,700) -
Surplus on revaluation EEBH 289 - - 289 14,077 14,366
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZBE+tE=A=+—-H| 39,258 15,237 49,058 103,553 101,094 204,647
Representing: RE:
Cost (BN 39,258 15,237 49,058 103,553 - 103,553
Valuation - 2007 B -—Z2tE - - - - 101,094 101,094
39,258 15,237 49,058 103,553 101,094 204,647
Cost or valuation: RAHMEE :
At Ist April, 2007 R-ZZ+tFEWMA—H 39,258 15,237 49,058 103,553 101,094 204,647
Additions wE - - 3,277 3,277 - 3,277
Disposals e 229) (4258)  (1,846)  (6:333) - (6333)
Reclassification from investment | HIREVEEHIESR
properties to land and buildings | Tt KIEF 6,760 - - 6,760 (6,760) -
Surplus on revaluation BLEG - - - - 24,780 24,780
At 31st March, 2008 R-—2EAFZA=+-0 45789 10979 50489 107,257 119,114 226371
Representing: (e
Cost [N 45,789 10,979 50,489 107,257 - 107,257
Valuation - 2008 ffE -—EENE - - - - 119,114 119,114
45,789 10,979 50489 107257 119,014 226371
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L # XK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
13, Bl E&E ()

(b) AT (&)

(b) The Company (continued)

Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets Sub-total properties Total
BFEERAN BRE Hit
tHREF Lk#E ETEE Mt RENE &%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Accumulated amortisation S EERITE
and depreciation:
At Ist April, 2006 RIEERFNA-H 10,156 14,963 41,336 66,455 - 66,455
Charge for the year RNEEHERFE 1,024 1,218 1,653 3,895 - 3,895
Written back on disposals HEREE - (1,968) (319) (2,287) - (2,287)
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZBZtE=F=+-A| 11,180 14,213 42,670 68,063 - 68,063
At Ist April, 2007 RZZEE+tEMA—H 11,180 14,213 42,670 68,063 - 68,063
Charge for the year RNEEHERFE 1,136 - 1,910 3,046 - 3,046
Written back on disposals HERED - (3,234) (1,291) (4,525) - (4,525)
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZFBENF=ZRA=+-H 12316 10,979 43,289 66,584 - 66,584
Net book value: REFE:
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEBENEZRA=+-H 33,473 - 7,200 40,673 119,114 159,787
At 31st March, 2007 NZZZStFE=ZA=+-H 28,078 1,024 6,388 35,490 101,094 136,584

(c)

All investment properties of the Group were revalued at 3lst

March, 2008 on an open market value basis calculated by reference

to net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

The valuations were carried out by independent firms of surveyors,

Knight Frank Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have

among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

with recent experience in the location and category of the

properties being valued.

90

(c)

R-ZEZENFE=ZF=1+—-HBAKEEHN
BREMERBSRAFELBEEEE
METSBEHSBLERTELH
TENFHEEES G WAHB LA
BT EERGBTMITERAAR
KRTHEBEEERAAELGEE -
ZEAEMT2HREATBISME
SEREE HIIHMEEDE 2

BREREBEELEER -
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

13. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . .. .. ... . 13. BIEEE(H) oo
(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (d) MEZRAFEIMNOT :
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ZETLFE ZBENF —EELHF
$’°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
Fi F7 Fi F
Long term leases REAELY
— outside Hong Kong - E5HBUINMBE = 6,700 = 229
Medium term leases FRHEIFE A
— in Hong Kong -E&B 80,229 69,052 112,934 93,542
— outside Hong Kong - HEUIIME 55,719 50,738 = -
Freehold KA ERE
— outside Hong Kong - EBUINMEE 39,653 35,401 39,653 35,401
175,601 161,891 152,587 129,172
Representing: RE*E
Land and buildings T RETF 73,044 68,259 33,473 28,078
Investment properties BEYE 100,432 86,677 119,114 101,094
173,476 154,936 152,587 129,172
Interests in leasehold land BEKEHE 2
held for own use under HAEE i
operating leases 2,125 6,955 - -
175,601 161,891 152,587 129,172
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEE SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(e) The Group and the Company leases out investment

®

properties under operating leases. The leases typically run
for an initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are

renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The gross carrying amounts of investment properties of the
Group and the Company held for use in operating leases
were $100,432,000 and $119,114,000 respectively (2007:
$86,677,000 and 101,094,000 respectively).

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are

classified as investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

13. BIEEE (&)

(e)

FEBRAADULEHRESK
HEREMX - HESWOH—
RE-—F2=ZF YEAEEE
ERMEERN  BERFARNK
REYEHHE - MERESHL
TREIEEE -

FAEEBREAQAFABELERE
HWBENMELAERABED B A
100,432,0007C & 119,114,0007T
(ZZZLF : 5 5 %86,677,000
7t % 101,094,0007T) ©

FERERENMKXERUALER
ENANMEIBRRENE -

FEBERBETUBBRNELEHEE
R RERNREEENRER
BT -

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

$’000 $°000

F FT

Within | year —FRw 7,435 8,497
After | year but —FZBHERFER

within 5 years 861 234

8,296 8,731
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

R L ® K f R »

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE-_ZTNF=ZA=1+—RALFE LETi)

14. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS ... . 4. BEIRE
The Group
KEE

2008 2007

—EEBN\F —EERLHF

$°000 $°000

FT F

At st April ROEOA—H 42 26

Exchange adjustments E R 5 2

Additions e 1,373 11,550
Transfer to fixed assets ERIEEEE

(note 13(a)) (H1aE13(a)) (1,129) (11,536)

At 31st March MR=ZA=+—H 291 42
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R Y

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTENF=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS . ..., . 15. BIREE ..,
The
The Group Company
rEH AT
Club Brand Club
debentures names Total Debentures
a% i A%t a8
$000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: BA
At Ist April, 2006 RZZEEXENA—H 2,874 5,170 8,044 2,384
Exchange adjustments ELAR - 563 563 -
Reduction through D
disposal of subsidiaries - FEBEENRBAT - (5,733) (5,733)
At 31st March, 2007 R-ZES+tF=ZA=+-H 2,874 - 2,874 2,384
At Ist April, 2007 and R=ZZEtEMA-H
at 31st March, 2008 k—EENE=HA=+-H 2,874 - 2,874 2,384
Accumulated amortisation: B
At Ist April, 2006 RZZEERENA-A - (5,170) (5,170 -
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (563) (563) -
Weritten back through disposal BE
of subsidiaries - FBEERBAR - 5733 5733 -
At 31st March, 2007 R-EZ+tH£=B=+-8 - - - -
At Ist April, 2007 and R-ZZtFMAB-H
at 31st March, 2008 R=BENF=ZA=t-H - - - -
Net book value: BRERE :
At 31st March, 2007 and R-ZZ+F=A=1+-H
at 3Ist March, 2008 k—EENE=A=+-H 2,874 - 2,874 2,384
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

' 4

bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-ZZNF=ZA=+—RILFE (UEBT)

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

Club debentures represent the rights to use the club facilities over

an indefinite period of time.

Brand names represent the cost of purchase of the right to brand

names from an independent third party which was disposed during

RO ® Ok & B oA A

15, BLEE (#F)

SEERTRBEEAEASIRE
ZFER] o

mEEN-—EBYE=ZSBEmnME
BANZRALER=_ZZLF=ZA

the year ended 31st March, 2007. =t+—HFERHE -
6. GOODWILL e 6. BB e,
The Group
AEE
Positive goodwill
EHE
$°000
Fr
Costs: A
At 31st March, 2007, R-EE+LtFE=A=1+—8H
and at 3 st March, 2008 E=ZEEBENE=A=+—H 2,177
Accumulated amortisation BB RERIE :
and impairment losses:
At 31st March, 2007 N-_EE+tE=F=+—H
and at 3Ist March, 2008 rE=ZEENFE=ZB=+—H 2,177

Carrying amount:
At 31st March, 2008
and at 31st March, 2007

BRESE
R-ZZEENE=RA=+—H
rR—ZEE+t=A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. B A RER

The Company

AT

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Unlisted investments, at cost| 3EEMRE » WA 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from FEUR Y B A R FRIE

subsidiaries 108,096 111,375

140,341 143,620

Less: Impairment loss WO EEE (6,500) (6,500)

133,841 137,120

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and not

expected to be repayable within one year of the balance sheet

date.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2008 are set out on

pages 147 to 148.

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

WEADRRREL RGN R
RS RAEMREH B —EATEHE -

R-ZBENF=ZA=+—BETEHE
NAIZEREHNREI4TEEI148H ©

The Group The Company
AEE P NN

2008 2007 2008 2007

—BBN\F —FELF =BENF =—TTLH

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

F FT FT FT

Unlisted shares, at cost FE TR R - - 22,881 22,881
Share of net assets EEEEFEE 16,110 14,671 = -
16,110 14,671 22,881 22,881
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (4,000) - (12,445) (12,445)
12,110 14,671 10,436 10,436

Details of the principal associates at 3Ist March, 2008 are set out

on pages 149 to 150.

R-ZBENF=ZRA=+—BFTEHKZ
DA ZEREINNEI49EZI508 °
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

18. INTEREST INASSOCIATES (continued) ... . 18. BMERARE M) ...
Summary financial information on associates BENTBNBEERME
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
wmA
BE =R R A (E18)
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr For Fr Fr
2008 —EEBNF
100 per cent Bo2Z—H 118,002 71,738 46,264 182,314 8,232
Group’s effective rEEBERER
interest 34,523 18,413 16,110 53,879 1,523
2007 -
100 per cent BOoZ—8 71,775 32,201 39,574 69,733 500
Group’s effective REBEBRER
interest 23,412 8,741 14,671 26,391 (343)
19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. G N AR
....... BN T e S s ettt
The Group The Company
REH ZNN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBFN\F —FETLF =TENF =—TTLH
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F7T F7T F7 F7T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE IR - A - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets ELHEEFE 428,655 314,042 = -
428,655 314,042 230,818 230,818
Details of the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities are set TEBREERARARZ ZEREHIIRN
out on pages 149 to 150. F149HE 508 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

Summary financial information on the jointly controlled entities — EENTEERME -
Group’s effective interest: NEBESHERE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHE
$’000 $°000
FIT Fr
Non-current assets EREBERE 569,998 585,305
Current assets REEE 446,359 251,022
Current liabilities REEE (443,325) (378,320)
Non-current liabilities eI =R (144,377) (143,965)
Net assets EEFEHE 428,655 314,042
Income WA 685,717 533,372
Expenses ¥ (608,730) (519,251)
Profit for the year REERERF 76,987 14,121

The Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entity as at 3Ist March, 2008 and 2007 includes an amount of
$12,118,000 which represents the unrealised losses on disposal of
certain associates and subsidiaries to Wuxi Talak Investment Co.,
Ltd. by the Group during the year ended 31st March, 2006. Such
unrealized losses have been accounted for to the extent that they
have been retained within the Group.

During the year ended 3Ist March, 2008, the Group’s 49% owned
jointly controlled entity, Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd., and
two of its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely Wuxi Changxin
Textile Co., Ltd. and Wuxi Changxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(collectively the “Wuxi Talak Group”) recognised compensation
income of RMB412,000,000 (equivalent to HK$452,826,000)
for vacanting certain plots of land occupied by the Wuxi Talak
Group. The Wuxi Talak Group also recognised impairment losses
on buildings, and plant and machinery situated on the land of
approximately RMB183,000,000 (equivalent to HK$202,910,000).
The compensation income, impairment losses recognised during
the year ended 3Ist March, 2008, and other losses and relocation
expenses incurred as a result of vacating the land occupied by
the Wuxi Group, contributed approximately RMB133,000,000
(equivalent to HK$147,470,000) to the net profit of the Wuxi Talak
Group.

TEEEER-_ZEZNFR-EEL
FZA=+T—HZEELQARAFEES
FE— 212,118,000t Z X% Z N EE
AREZE-ZZEERF=ZA=+—H1L
FEAREBEESE THE L ARMK
BARTFESRERERBRLAAZR
BEERB ZERERBBROELE
BREBZIDARARE-

BE-_ZENF=ZRA=+—HLE
E AEBEEEI 2N T AKREZ
EENT - BERBIREERLAA
REMBEZEMBLAR  BAESHE
FHBERAARBESEFTEEER
AR (GBI EHGREEEDEI —F
£ EH AR 1412,000,000T 2 & &
(FB % A 78 %5452,826,0007T) » A LA %=
EESRBEBMAMMGEBE 2R L it o
EERHEETICHERERLI M 2
BEEY BMERIBZBEEE ©
A A R #183,000,0007T (FHZE N8
202,910,0007T) cBE-_ZEZENF =
B=+—HLEFE FRIANEES
WANBRRESE REZEEGRE
BEELELIHMBEENEMBEER
EEER ERESRBEEETFIE
# A R #133,000,0007T (FHZRBH
147,470,0007C) °
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NT LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_ZTTZN\F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)
19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. E& N EIHED (&

The Wuxi Talak Group received compensation in cash of BE-EENF=RA=+—HIH=®E
RMB424,000,000 (equivalent to HK$470,131,000) during the year E BHERBEEENURESH XKW
ended 31st March, 2008, of which RMB412,000,000 (equivalent to #HEE WA AR %424,000,0005T (18
HK$456,825,000) was in the income statement as it has fulfilled the F R H470,131,0007T) - HREAE

THEANTINER ZEREF
AR #412,000,0007t (FHZE R B
456,825,0007T) B ET AR R A © &
T AR #12,000,0007T (102 A 8 #&

required obligations set out in the compensation agreement. The
remaining RMB12,000,000 (equivalent to HK$13,306,000) and the
last instalment of RMB88,000,000 (equivalent to HK$97,574,000)

will be recognised as compensation income subject to the

13,306,0007T) R B R —HMBBARE
fulfillment of the certain obligations set out in the compensation 88,000,000 (A8 % R 3 #597.574.0005T )
agreement. ZHE ARERBESNFRES
FRIEARBEERA -
20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS ..., 20, Hith e mEE
The Group and the Company
KEBRERATF
2008 2007
ZEENF —EELHF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Available-for-sale equity A HERARER -
securities:
— Unlisted -3kLEmWm 895 895
— Listed outside —BBUMNLET
Hong Kong, at ®ME
market value 558 558
1,453 1,453
Loans receivable FEWER = 3,133
1,453 4,586
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BT # XK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B o

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) ...~ 20. HthSWEEME) ...
At 31st March, 2008, the loans receivable were repayable as follows: R-ZZBBENEFE=ZA=+—H EKE
MZERPWOT :
The Group The Company
rEH P NN

2008 2007 2008 2007

—ET\F -TTtE —BB\F -TTtLHE

$°000 $°000 $°000 $’000

FT Fr FT T

Within | year (note 22) RER (B72F22) 4,711 3,109 544 3,109
After | year but —FZEMERN

within 2 years - 1,932 - -
After 2 years but MEEEREFR

within 5 years - 1,201 - -

- 3,133 = _

4711 6,242 544 3,109

R-ZZBEENF=ZR=+—H EKE
REEEEE )W-ZZEZZTNE=AH

As at 31st March, 2008, the loans receivable represent the carrying

amount of i) the consideration receivable from the disposal of

subsidiary during the year ended 3Ist March, 2004 amounting to
$389,000 (2007: $4,709,000); ii) a loan receivable from a supplier
of the Group amounting to $4,168,000 (2007: Nil); and iii) the loan
receivable from Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) amounting to $154,000
(2007: $1,533,000).

In respect of consideration receivable from the disposal of
subsidiary, the Group has written off the loan receivable amounting
to $4,320,000 during the year ended 31st March, 2008. The written
down amount of $389,000 is expected to be settled within one

year with no interest bearing.

The loan receivable from a supplier is interest bearing at 7.75% per
annum on the principal outstanding, the entire amount is expected
to be settled in 2008.

The loan receivable from YSA is unsecured and interest-free, which
represents the written down amount of the loan receivable as at

the balance sheet date.

E+-HLEFEREENBARAZ
X1 Fr K FE U 7%389,0000T (ZZEE +
£ 1 4,709,0007T) ; i)~ REEFAX
A& B 2 FE W E 54,168,000t (=&
ZALF &) K iii) Yangtzekiang S.A.
(T'YSAD) Bk z B & 5X154,0007T
(ZZZ+ 4 :1,533,0000T) °

FRLENB AR ZREHMIERK
AEECRZZEENE=ZA=+—
B 4 FE 4 #054,320,0007T ; #8258
389,000 T R F B - FBEAR —FERE
;;% °

—REEEA A ENERBATEUF
FZE775% :TEFE - FEAHR=_ZSF
NEZEEE -

YSA IRz EWERBNEE B 2
WEREE  RBEERARAHERNE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

21, INVENTORIES . 2L BB
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprises: () FEREEEBERERE:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—REN\F —TRLF —BBNE -BILE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr FT F
Raw materials B # 38,771 27,112 2,928 1,900
Work in progress TR 104,085 95,445 31,979 53,412
Finished goods F A M 19,258 16,481 2,289 1,273
162,114 139,038 37,196 56,585
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) FEHEIEZHIMAOT :
an expense is as follows:
The Group
rE
2008 2007
—EENE C—BELE
$°000 $°000
FT FT
Carrying amount of EFEHERAEE
inventories sold 1,270,989 1,379,531
Write down of inventories FE MU 2,456 4,249
Reversal of write-down FEMBER
of inventories (3,904) (1,350)
1,269,541 1,382,430
The reversal of write-down of inventories mainly due to BEMBEcFEETER AR KEHE
subsequent sales value of garment exceeded its previously written ELEBE ZAIMBESEE -

down value.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES . . .. 22 BURAKRHEMEEWR .
The Group The Company
KEE AREF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTtF —BEN\F —BTtLF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT Fr F Fr
Trade receivable FE U BRFX 146,908 140,944 50,905 58,873
Bills receivable R RE 74,798 113,906 54,726 78,003
Less: allowances for W RIBRBE
doubtful debts (2,324) (7,568) (381) (1,770)
219,382 247,282 105,250 135,106
Loans receivables (note 20) BWRE R (Kiat20) 4,711 3,109 544 3,109
Deposits, prepayments 8 FBEANRR
and other debtors Hui Uk 25,912 34,413 6,403 6,483
Amount due from FEUR T B A R FRIE
subsidiaries - - 127,008 138,828
Amount due from FEWEE R RRIE
related companies 6,452 8,277 60 -
Dividend receivable from FE Y B & N B R
associates and jointly EELQNTFRE
controlled entities 30,938 29,904 - -
Derivative financial fTHEemIA
Instruments 1,162 1,120 - 1,120
69,175 76,823 134,015 149,540
288,557 324,105 239,265 284,646
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

As at 3Ist March, 2008, bills receivable of the Group and the
Company amounting to $42,184,000 and $34,920,000 (2007:
$38,334,000 and $26,513,000) have been pledged to secure bank
loans of $42,184,000 and $34,920,000 (2007: $38,334,000 and
$26,513,000) respectively (note 25). Except for bills receivable, as
at 31st March, 2008 and 2007, there is no trade debtor which has

been pledged to secure bank loans of the Group.

In order to satisfy certain financial covenants relating to the
banking facilities drawn by Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group’s jointly controlled entity, a
dividend receivable from Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. amounting to
$28,046,000 at 31st March, 2008 is expected to be recovered in
full when the related bank facilities mature in 2009. Except for the
above mentioned dividend, all of the trade and other receivables

are expected to be recovered within one year.

All other amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies and

associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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RZBEZENEFE=ZA=+—8  K&EH
& 75 2\ 7] #542,184,0007T K 34,920,000
T (ZZZ £ 5F 38,334,000t %
26,513,0007T) Z FEWE & D BIERIK
42,184,000t }34,920,000T (=&
Z+ £ : 38,334,000 £.26,513,0007T)
(MaE25) ZMITERER - REKRE
B RZBEENERZZTLE=
B=+—H AEEREBTAEIWK
RRERKBEMBITERER °

ARECERSRIBEHBERAR (K
EBEENRP 2 —RE2EMBEAA)
ETRITEEZHMEGRR R=ZZZ
NE =B =+ — H $£28,046,0007T 2
BURERAEAR-ZENFEEH
BITEEDHBEEEER Rl
BRE SN BB e Uk BR 7K R H 4th FE LR
HUERR-FREE -

HittFERBMEBLR BEATAR
BELATARBRRBER  TFF
B UFRBANRBEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(a) Ageing Analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and

bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the

following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

(a) FRERDHT
REEABEEERERRR At
W AE LT BRER 2 4T 2 FE U
RRREREE (SHBRRER

B -
The Group The Company
rEH N

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENE —EZtLtFE —ZTENFE —ZEZTLHE

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr FT Fr FT

Current < 381 HA 150,629 171,941 81,289 102,687
Less than 60 days BH D 60

past due 56,137 63,669 21,413 30,716

61 — 90 days past due B 6l — 90H 4,240 8,993 781 534
More than 90 days BHI90H LA

past due 8,376 2,679 1,767 1,169

Amount past due panp: iR 68,753 75,341 23,961 32,419

Trade debtors and FEWERA K
bills receivable W EE 219,382 247,282 105,250 135,106

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between

30 days to 90

days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit

policy are set out in note 31(a).

EWERR R EKREZEEEER %30
BZEORANEEH - NEBHEEBER
HIE — D BERMEE3(a) ©
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE_TTNF=ZA=+—RILFE (L&)
(b) EURERFREKWEERE

PEWIRAR R BN RS 2 RES
B AEESRINEBHERS -
BRIEAEBMBERRKREZFIEA
WA REMRE - BENBESE
BEENERERER R ERES S
s (2B (m) (i) °

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade

debtors and bills receivable directly (see note |(m)(i)).

FARERBENED (BFEE
AR HEBEMB)OT

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the

year, including both specific and collective loss components, is

as follows:
The Group The Company
rEE AR

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENE —EELE ZBEBENF ZE2ETLHF

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Fr FT T FrT

At Ist April REUA—H 7,568 2,021 1,770 640

(Revesal of) / (#B=) (5,244) 5,547 (1,389) 1,130
impairment loss EERZ
recognised B EE

At 31st March R=A=+—H 2,324 7,568 381 1,770

At 31st March, 2008, the Group’s and the Company’s
trade debtors and bills receivable of $14,112,000 (2007:
$21,232,000) and $8,702,000 (2007: $13,513,000)
respectively were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be

recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful

debts of $2,324,000 (2007: $7,568,000) and $381,000 (2007:

$1,770,000) respectively were recognised. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.
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R-ZBEENE=ZA=+—H &
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T (ZEZ L F :21,232,0007T)
}8,702,000c (ZEZE L F :
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ZEWENEEALEBERE-
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BB MEEREFHEHETR
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) = 22. BUWRARHMBUR (&) .

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) MRBEZERERREREE
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that I AR A B 25 4 [5) 4 1R A R (B 2 FE

are neither individually nor collectively considered to be AR R FE N ZEBRE D AT T -

impaired are as follows:

The Group The Company
rEM A
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTtF —BEN\F —BTtLF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
Neither past due b >k 580 B SR B
nor impaired 150,629 171,941 81,289 102,687
Less than 60 days BH D 60K
past due 45,323 45,220 13,816 18,610
61-90 days past due HHi61-90R 3,820 8,488 414 241
More than 90 days B0 R U
past due 7,820 401 1,409 56
56,963 54,109 15,639 18,907
207,592 226,050 96,928 121,594
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate T 4 8 A 2R B 2 FE U BR TR B R
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent SWHFAIAR R EZEFER] -

history of default.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not

impaired (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 31(a).

(c) ERBEZEKERREVREE
(4&)
BB ARREZ BB RAES
BBUEFER ZEEFYHR
SENEERBRY - RBBHE
i EEERS  REERE
ARERE EDRFEERLE
EXREH  BEBRDERETE
BWE - NEEYNEHRZEER
FEEMERR-

REEBNEERRENKFE
31(a) °

23, BERBEEEY

The Group The Company
rEH b YN

2008 2007 2008 2007

—BBN\F —FELF —BENF =—TTLH

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

FT F 7T F 7T F7T

Deposits with banks RITER 32,700 19,536 32,700 19,536
Cash at bank and IRITEHER

in hand RBE® 64,138 60,519 8,981 5,580

Cash and cash equivalents HENHESZEY 96,838 80,055 41,681 25,116
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For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

24, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES .. ... 24 BOEKEZJREMESK ...
The Group The Company
rEH ARAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —EELE ZBEBENF ZE2ETLHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr FT FrT
Trade creditors FE{F BRI 156,594 163,724 81,752 87,220
Bills payable B R i& 8,891 17,003 4,342 10,529
Accrued charges and EEtE AR HAb
other creditors FEATFR 108,133 113,200 31,201 34,166
Amounts due to related EAEERQT
companies =18 3,709 217 = 217
Amounts due to associates F‘Eﬁ AN
and jointly controlled EE AT
entities ER IE 7,686 4,148 1,515 753
Amount due to a B —RERIE
shareholder 3,326 3,286 - -
Amounts due to FEAT BT B 1 B FRIE
subsidiaries - - 42,858 75,001
288,339 301,578 161,668 207,886
The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, associates EAHEB AT - Bﬁ?_i\\ﬂ 2N
and jointly controlled entities, and a shareholder are unsecured, REERNTAE—"KREFEESEIR
interest-free and repayable on demand. B FERE I 'ﬁ%?ﬁdﬁiﬂﬁﬂ REEE -
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FIERNERREMENRFERER
within one year. —FREZE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

REERBEEERNERIAREMEN
HRABUTRE DN 2B RARE

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills

payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

date: HEE
The Group The Company
KEE ARF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —BEELtE Z—ZBENE —TE+HE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT Fr F Fr
Less than 60 days L1608 129,181 155,715 61,028 92,938
61 — 90 days 61 HE90H 11,562 11,392 8,907 2,914
More than 90 days 90H M £ 24,742 13,620 16,159 1,897
Trade creditors and ENERR
bills payable i E$ 165,485 180,727 86,094 97,749

. BANK LOANS

At 31st March, 2008, the bank loans were repayable as follows: R-BEENEFE=ZA=+—H 78
MZEBZRBWT
The Group The Company
rEH AT

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENE ZEZtLtFE Z—ZTENFE —EZTLHE

$’°000 $°000 $’000 $°000

FT Fr FT FT

Within | year or on demand| — £ A% E A 78,434 104,624 67,420 49,013
After | year but within —FREMER

2 years - 11,250 - 7,500

78,434 115,874 67,420 56,513
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

25. BANK LOANS (continued) .. ... ...  25. 8RITEF) ...
At 31st March, 2008, the bank loans were secured as follows: R-ZZBBENEFE=ZA=+—H RITE
MZERBEROT :
The Group The Company
rEE P NN

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF ZZETLF ZBENF EELHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FIT Fr Fr Fr

Bank loans RITER
— secured - BEH 42,184 38,334 34,920 26,513
— unsecured - #|miKH 36,250 77,540 32,500 30,000
78,434 115,874 67,420 56,513
As at 31st March, 2008, bank loans of the Group and the Company R—ZZBEENEF=ZA=Z=+—H ' &K
amounting to $42,184,000 and $34,920,000 (2007: $38,334,000 and EMEADTSD BIA42,184,000
$26,513,000) were secured by bills receivable of the Group and 7T }2.34,920,000T (Z BB ZE + F :
the Company amounting to $42,184,000 and $34,920,000 (2007: 38,334,0007T }26,513,0007T) = FE U
$38,334,000 and $26,513,000) respectively (see note 22). Z=1$£42,184,0007T }2.34,920,0007T (=&

T+ £ 138,334,000 %26,513,0007T)
ZRITEREL KR (B EMF22) -

Except for the above, as at 3Ist March, 2008, there is no bank loan BpEm U RZEBEENE=A

which is secured by any of the Group’s assets. =+—HB ' AREEXYREULRAERD
EERTMBRTERMELIET -
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BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
26. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 26.

BERKEF

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $20,000.The Group’s employer’s contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The Group also operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO retirement benefit scheme for those employees who were
eligible to participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in
a way similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee
leaves the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
employer’s contributions or refunded to the employer. The amount

of employer contributions forfeited during the year was immaterial.

The employees of certain subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-sponsored retirement benefit scheme organised by the local
government in the PRC.The subsidiaries are required to contribute,
based on a certain percentage of payrolls, to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these retirement benefit schemes is to make the

required contributions under the terms of the schemes.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

27. INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET = 27. HESSRASHAER. .
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (a) EEEBERMTNAHMEHA
The Group The Company
rEE ENNC
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETLE ZBENF ZETLHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fi F7 Fi F
Provision for Hong Kong KEE
Profits Tax for the year EBEBRNEHRERE 8,728 7,714 6,894 3,879
Provisional Profits Tax paid S EHRER (3,963) (3,908) (1,121) (1,716)
4,765 3,806 5,773 2,163
Balance of Profits Tax BEFEREH
provision relating to LR
prior years 2,740 - 2,740 -
7,505 3,806 8,513 2,163
Tax provision/ (recoverable) | 4N E A T
of overseas subsidiaries A (AEE)
FEBEIR 2,189 (1,493) = -
Net tax payable FEASBi 18 R 9,694 2,313 8,513 2,163
Representing: RE
Tax recoverable A EBIIA (1,008) (1,493) = -
Tax payable B HLE 10,702 3,806 8,513 2,163

9,694 2,313 8,513 2,163
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised:

(i)

27. EEREXRMTIHNRES (&)

(b) BRABELEHREH (BE) &fF:

The Group () FEH
The components of net deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEGRAREERBEREINEL
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the Fe# () /BB FENA
movements during the year are as follows: BEBMAFEZBHMT
Depreciation
Future allowances
benefit  Revaluation  Revaluation in excess of
of tax of investment of other the related
losses  properties properties  depreciation Others Total
EN BERE
51 R& EftE  REONE
RRFIH NEER B SHE Hft 2
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r r r r r fr
Deferred tax arising from: FETHEEY
At Ist April, 2006 RZBZREMA-A (1,885) 11,250 3,782 200 (607) 12,740
Exchange adjustment EiAE (437) 109 - - - (328)
Charged to the EBEHERIX
income statement 339 1,563 - 234 252 2,388
Charged to reserves ERENX - - 36 - - 36
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT 1,983 - - - - 1,983
At 31st March, 2007 RoBELE
=ZB=1-H - 12,922 3,818 434 (355) 16,819
At Ist April, 2007 RZEELEMA-H - 12,922 32818 434 (355) 16,819
Exchange adjustment ERAR - 310 - - - 310
Charged/ (credited) to the EBHRI%/
income statement (FFA) - 2,782 - 918 (4916) (1,216)
Effect of change of tax rate Hzgn o8 - (100) - (20) - (120)
At 31st March, 2008 RZBENE
=ZA=t+-H - 15,914 3,818 1,332 (5,271) 15,793
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(ii)

The Company

27. EEREXRMTAHNAES (&)

(b) ERRBELFSH (EE) &E:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised

in the balance sheet and the movements during the year are

(&)
(i) A2 E]

CHEEEREREIANELRSE
BEE) BENARBH M

as follows: KEESBHWOT :
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation  Revaluation  in excess of
of investment of other  the related
properties properties depreciation Others Total
bl
REMX HittE  HENRE
B Bt B it Eok
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Fr Fr F Fr
Deferred tax arising from: KE THEEY
At Ist April, 2006 RIBEERE
mMA—H 11,617 3,782 47 (561) 14,885
Charged to the RRERIIX
income statement 2,247 - 234 252 2,733
Charged to reserves EREYIX - 36 - - 36
At 31st March, 2007 R-BBtE
=A=+-H 13,864 3,818 281 (309) 17,654
At Ist April, 2007 R-B2LE
mA—-H 13,864 3,818 281 (309) 17,654
Charged to the EERRIZ
income statement 2,960 - 918 309 4,187
Effect of change of tax rate RREH o E (300) - (20) - (320)
At 31st March, 2008 R-BENF=ZR
=1+-H 16,524 3,818 1,179 - 21,521
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 27. EEREBERARNFAES (&)
....... (SONBINUEA) | e s ettt
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERRBELHEH (KE) Af:
(&)
The Group The Company
KEE ARF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F -TTLF -BE\F —ITTLE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F 7T F7T F7 F 7
Net deferred tax EEEEEBX
assets recognised TR RIEL
in the balance sheet e EEFE (1,204) - = -
Net deferred tax EEEEEBX
liabilities recognised BRIIEL
in the balance sheet FrEfiBEFEE 16,997 16,819 21,521 17,654
15,793 16,819 21,521 17,654
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) RERWELMBSHREE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(t), the REMTIQOMBZEHEE £&
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax 8 1= AR s T B O B 5 84,585,000
losses of $4,585,000 (2007: $8,235,000) attributable to certain T (ZZF L F 8,2350007T) B9 AT K
subsidiaries as the directors consider it is not probable that future HEBEERIAEENELHEHEE
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be RESRAARTEEBE2HBE A EE
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses ERRERERMS  FAUHBAZ
expire five years after they are incurred. 85 18 LUK 85 R SR FE SR B0R Al 2 7T R
RE -EBLEAEANBEREARBSR
F o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

28. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS = 28 RABRBEEE. ...
The Group The Company
rEM ZNNS
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZE2ELE ZBBN\FE ZZTZLHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
At Ist April REA—H 3,591 4,272 1,946 2,065
Add: Additional provisions hn R EEIE
made 21,131 591 138 155
Less: Payments during W ERNAR
the year - (544) = -
Less: Reversal of provision W EERE 9 (728) - (274)
At 31Ist March HR=BA=+—H 24,531 3,591 2,084 1,946
Long service payments i) provided by the Group in accordance RHRBSER VREB(BBEREK
with Part VB of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance based BYEREI B AELREFBER T
on the employees’ service to date and current salary levels for REFZREE REEHFERRE
those employees in Hong Kong who have been employed by the FMOKFEE R REFEEDHE
Group for at least five years, and ii) Labour Contract Law of the R EBaR%ED AMBEASR

BHERCHEES  REERES
REBHFMATHE - R-BBNE
A=t EEEARMZER =
THREBAFEN-EBLEAS
—+ABERBEB -

PRC (“Labour Contract Law”) based on the employees’ service
to date and the current salary levels for all employees with labour
contracts in the PRC. Addition provision made during the year
ended 3Ist March 2008 was mainly due to the Labour Contract
Law enacted on 29th June 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
TEENF=ZRA=+—RILFE (UBT)

H=E

()

=

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES . . ... 29 BRAREEHE ...
The Group (a) FE£H
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ERENALARERAA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment buildings
Share Share  redemption  Exchange arisingon  revaluation revaluation Other Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  consolidation reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Equity
GaRA 1#R
e Bl fiEER R g2 HERR
Rt RBEE R i BE EMER  EMBR  HBER  REEW E] B EnEE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
iz i i i i iz z z iz z i iz
As at Ist April, 2006 W-SERERE-R 105,184 102,753 48l (14480) (46,161) 400 2005 5507 409875 583615 - 583615
Dividend approved in respect of | ZEERHERN L -EE
the previous yer e 10(8) | RE (Fip) - - - - - - - S sgy (68 S (k)
Exchange diffrences on BEEEIAMNELT
trandlation of the financil iR ERER
statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong - - - 5389 - - - - - 5359 - 5359
Exchange diferences on transhtion | 5 EENF /420
ofthe share of iterests n EFEREE
associates and jointly
controlled entities - - - 18929 - - - - - 18,929 - 18,929
Proftfor the year KEERT - - - - - - - - 9,106 96,106 %) 96470
Dividend declared i respect of | REERERE
the current year (nae 10/g)) (W) . - - - - - - - (6311) (6311) - (8311)
Capital injecton by minority DERERARA
interest - - - - - - - - - - 982 981
Disposal of subsidiries and HEKBATREELT
associates - - - (2.991) 3987 - - - (3.987) (2991 - (2.991)
Valation surpus on transfer of | +HRETERERENE
land and buidings to HERS CHREE
investments propertes,net of | A
deferred tax - - - - - - 8 - - 18 - 8
Asat 31st March, 2007 HTBELEZRSE-R | IS0 102783 4l 60T (diny 40 20309 ST g eI [T Yl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 ¥R % Y =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-ZZNF=ZA=+—RILFE (UEBT)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) . ... ... — 29. BERSBEM) . ...
(a) The Group (continued) () R&EE(HF)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ERERFLARARAA
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment buildings
Share Share  redemption  Exchange arisingon  revaluation revaluation Other Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  consolidation reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Equity
GaRA 4R
e En  fEE R g2 HEBR

BE RfER RERR & BE  BMRE  EGER  AtBE  Remd ] B EufE
§000 §000 §000 §000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 §000 $000
2 i i i i i i i 123 i 2 i

As at Ist April, 2007 R-BEtERA-B 105,184 102,753 48l 6817 (42174 400 20309 5507 419454 618731 T4 6719477
Divdend approved inrespectof | REERHEBN -5
the preius e rote 10B) | BB (B 10p) . . . . . . . T L) S

Exchange differences on BEEEIANELT
transation of the financial HRERZERZE
statements of subsidiaries
outsde Hong Kong - - - 031 - - - - - JUNEL - ]

Exchange diferences on transltion | 5 EENF /4207
of the share of interests in ERZEREE
associates and jointly

controlled entities - - - 39051 - - - - - 39,081 - 39081
Pofc for e er KEgHA - - - - - - - S M L)
Appropriation of reserves BAGE - - - - - - - 119 (179) - - -
Dividend decired i respect of | AEERSTRHE

thearetyar o 100) | (B304) - - - - - - - S (osiy (sl S
Capital njction by minority HERREARA

interest - - - - - - - - - - 314 314
Asat 315t March, 2008 H-SENEZR=1-R 105,184 102,753 48 66,099 (2,174 400 20,309 1236 577,892 838,180 mn 838,950
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)
29. RAR#HE (&)

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 H£E SR

(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
Capital Investment  buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
e RE t1HRET
kx  ROOEE HORE EfRE  EMRE  REEN ag
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 Fr 7 Fr 7 Fr Fr
As at Ist April, 2006 WZZERENA-A 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,056 356,442 585,316
Dividend approved in respect of TEERHEBR L —FE
the previous year (note 10(b)) HMRE (Hiiow) - - - - - (16,829) (16,829)
Valuation surplus on transfer of THRETERERENE
land and buildings to investments ZItERS  CHREL
properties, net deferred tax B - - - - 253 - 253
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - 39,684 39,684
Dividend declared in respect of KEECERRE
the current year (note 10(a)) (&t 10() - - - - - (6311) (6311)
As at 31st March, 2007 R-2BLF=A=1-8 105,184 102,753 48 400 20,309 372,986 602,113
Land and
Capital Investment  buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
kx RE t1hHRET
kx  ROEE HORE EfRE  EMRE  REERN ag
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 T 7r Fr 7 7 7z
As at Ist April, 2007 WZZZtEMA-H 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 372,986 602,113
Dividend approved in respect of TEERHEBR L —FE
the previous year (note 10(b)) WRE (#rE10m)) - - - - - (31,555) (31,555)
Prolfit for the year REEER - - - - - 35,615 35,615
Dividend declared in respect of FEEEERRE
the current year (note 10(a)) (H1iE10(2)) - - - - - (10,518) (10,518)
As at 31st March, 2008 R-2EN\FZA=t+-H 105,184 102,753 481 400 20,309 366,528 595,655
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TS HR R BT

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_ZTTZN\F=ZA=1+—RHIFE (L&)

(c) Share capital

29. BRAR#1E (&

() Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZETRE
2008 2007
ZBENF ZEETLHF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
’000 $°000 ’000 $°000
FK FT FR Fr
Authorised: EERAK
Ordinary shares of BREESTZ
$0.50 each B 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: | BEITRAZKAK :
At Ist April KA —H 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184
At 31st March R=ZA=+—H 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as TEREEEERUIMATBEIRNEK
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share B UHEREARADARRARE LR

at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

RER-FNLASERRE - TES

BREALCABANEELHEZARSE

R o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(i) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note I (w).

(i) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in note I(i)(ii).
The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

(iv)  Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held
at the balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in notes I(f) and (m).
The investment revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

(v)  Goodwill arising on consolidation

Upon disposal of YSA as described in note 30(a), goodwill
previously recognised in reserve was transferred to retained

profit in accordance with the accounting policies in note |(e).

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#

29. BRANFHE (&

d) RENHEERAR
() BROEEREXEEFE
R EERERNEERFENRR
72 B Z B F B A FEHI) 5488
1R R SE4HIKFTE 88 -

EZ#RE
ErLFEEERRERBUMNE
BrMBREMELEZREER
EH - ZRBIOREBEMEI(W)AT
BoEHERER -

(i)

T REFE G EE
RARERIEMLFHE  LIRE
MEMAEANS T BER (K
1G)(ii)) RIEE L EE -

(iii)

tHREFEARBELATH
DIRTFARRRAREFEA

REEGHE
REEHFHBEEENEERRSE
AHEERSFAFEBENRS
FEE WARBEAKEI(HR
I(mNEFTBERERE -

(iv)

REBARBETITHRDIIKRTAR
AREFEA -

GEREFTELEZHE

M EE30()FTit 0 EYSA HE
B RIBHEIe)ffE 2 g5 K
R OBEECHRERER L&
SHEAREEF -

v)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

(e) Distributability of reserves

()

At 31st March, 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
$366,528,000 (2007: $372,986,000). After the balance sheet date
the directors proposed a final dividend of $0.18 per share (2007:
$0.15 per share), amounting to $37,866,000 (2007: $31,555,000).
This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the balance

sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes

in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and trade and
other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all component of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividend.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from the previous financial year, was to maintain the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to

shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

29.

(e)

U}

BRAK#E (A

A2 RS
RZZEZNF=ZA=+—H KQFH
ARIRFRDARESFEANRKE
#4 %8 5366,528,000T (ZEE L F !
372,986,0007T) - REH A% &S
EERERPERESR0IBT (ZEE
t & §Ro.157T) & §737,866,0000
T (ZZEZ 4§ 31,5550000T) ° #%
REREEAABRABARG -

BEXEE
FEBEEREANTEENAERE
BREAFERLE  EBBEEERARK
FHENERRBREERRUSED
BMARE  EtmeEFdnRREM/D
HREMBEBATRHERNE -

AEEEBEEMRNREEZHESR
R BRESEEKFIRELRR
HNYE REBEKTHEESES
RER @M EENERNRR A BRE
e AEBEBRBLBBERNEZB MY
BERRBEHBE -

HERES - FAEEZRFEE
HERBEA L ENWEEERELRR
BoBEms AEELEBFHER
EREELAE (BETEENRREER
BNERRRAEMESTR) - WEKRR
ANEBERERRERRESEENE
REERRERBRBANERRE -

REABRFE  FAEBEREBEIIK
FEZRE HBFFREEHEAERSR
REER—EEEKT -  BEFALHA
EFEEHKARELAL R KEH
EHRNTTFTRRNBRESHELA
B BROHRO BRREEER
ERFNEBRERHEEENRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S 2% B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TZEN\F=_A=t+—HILFE (L&)

CRARREE (A

BEXEE(F)

(f) Capital management (continued) ()

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March, 2008 and

2007 was as follows:

RZBENERZ-ZZZLHFZ=ZA
=t—B FEEHLABELRKEX

ME
The Group The Company
i 3 b NYNE
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EE\F C-TTtF —BE\F _-TTt%F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Current Liabilities: RENEE !
Trade and other payables | FE{TBRFVR E (TR 24 288,339 301,578 161,668 207,886
Bank loans RITER 25 78,434 104,624 67,420 49,013
366,773 406,202 229,088 256,899
Non-current liabilities: FREEE:
Bank loans RITER 25 - 11,250 - 7,500
Provision for long EHRES
service payments A 28 24,531 3,591 2,084 1,946
Total debt BfERE 391,304 421,043 231,172 266,345
Add: Proposed dividends R B 10(a) 37,866 31,555 37,866 31,555
Less: Cash and cash BBEERESEEY
equivalents 23 (96,838) (80,055) (41,681) (25,116)
Net debt FEEE 332,332 372,543 227,357 272,784
Total equity R B 838,950 679,477 595,655 602,113
Less: Proposed dividends AR R B (37,866) (31,555) (37,866) (31,555)
Adjusted Capital RFBRER 801,084 647,922 557,789 570,558
Net debt-to-capital FABHERLE 41% 57% 41% 48%

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEZZZT)\F=RA=1T—HILFE (LUBTit)

30. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO THE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

30. MERERERZHEHTER

() HEMELT
RZBERF+-B XEBWB
& M [E K B 2 B FYangtzekiang S.A.
(TYSAD 2z—EF - 8fFYSARJIL
International » f$1& % Bl 5619,0007T 2
AR X8 & 2,474,000T 2 B R4
B - ZEHRGERELRER -

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries
In November 2006, the Group disposed of two subsidiaries, namely
Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) and JIL International, to a director of YSA
for an unconditional consideration and a conditional consideration
of $619,000 and $2,474,000 respectively. The conditional
consideration had not been recognised as the conditions attached
were not probable to be achieved.

REERZEHBARZEEREN

The net assets of the subsidiaries at the dates of disposal were as

follows:

T :

2007
—EELHF
$°000
Fr

Interests in land and buildings held BEERANEEL M RETF
for own use 292
Property, plant and equipment WE - MERZE 1,818
Construction in progress EEIRE -
Other financial assets HttemEE 2,885
Deferred tax assets EEFHIEEE 1,983
Inventories =7E 27,172
Trade and other receivables JE S BR R I L At P LKL SR 68,235
Tax recoverable T B IEBIIE -
Pledged deposits HHER -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEY 4,103
Bank loans and overdrafts BITERREX (23,730)
Trade and other payables FEATBR R R H A BB 3R (69,307)
Tax payable A (545)
Exchange reserve 0 5 k1 (2,991)
Minority interests DEREERE 9,915
Loss on disposal HEEE _
(9.296)
619
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
bR S

For the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEZZZT)\F=A=1T—BLFE (LE&Tit)

30. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO THE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

30. RERERBRZHBAEHR (&)

() HEMBRR (&)

2007
ZEELHF
$°000
Fr
Satisfied by: WE = :
Cash received BWERE 358
Cash receivable FEWIRE 261
619
Analysis of net outflow of cash and HENBARZRERES
cash equivalents in respect of EEVREFEIWNOT ¢
disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration HERE 258
Cash and cash equivalents of the HEMBARZESR
subsidiaries disposed of NEEEY (4,103)
Net outflow of cash and cash HEMNBARZRER
equivalents in respect of disposal REeLEMRE FEE
of subsidiaries (3,845)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MR

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B=E

(@)

—EENF=ZA=A+—HILFE (K#Erit)

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group
is also exposed to equity price risk from its equity investment
in other entities. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial

management policies and practices described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to time deposits
with financial institutions, trade and other receivables and loans
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of time deposits with financial institutions, the Group
only places time deposits with major financial institutions, which

management believe are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount and for all new customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. These receivables are due between
30 days to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group

does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the balance
sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 10.7% (2007: 12.3%) and 33.9% (2007: 36.3%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively within the manufacturing and sale of

garments business segment.

(@)

FEBESCERXBBREPEHRE
E-RBES FMXRMIEER A
SETAZREAMEEESREN
RERR AEEREBTHEAMEE
BREREEME  HE LR RN
R o

FERR

AEENEERBRTIERASHEE
EREN  BUIRN - HttEWRRK
WER EEECEREEIX
YEATHERAEAZEERBNREZE -

RERRSBEBZ ERERTS -
AEERRERERAAEREET
BrIELRMBBTIRRER -

MEWRIREMERRMS @ A%
EHERBB-—TLEEENMER
FRIAEBHEFISETENEET
o AFEEFREFBIAMNES
MEZELRERKNRZED AR
ZRINEFCABERNREFEERN
i 2 KERE - ZEREBR AR
B AHZ30E90R AEH - REE—
BIAEEEFERERHRS -

rEENERAERSIEEEFNE
RIERAMEE EREENTENER
RWENEREEARAREEEE
ERERR -NEER  AEEEE
THORREERBEEREERRER
FHBRAEFNERREAEFERER
HREMERREZERRBEPE
DAIRI0T%(ZEELF 1 123%) R
339% (ZZZF L F 1 363%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE

(b)

AN

—ET)\EF=ZR=+—RHIFE (LUErit)
Credit risk (continued)
In respect of loans receivable, individual credit evaluations are

performed before granting of loans.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
including derivative financial instrument in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Group or the Company as set out in
note 33, the Group or the Company does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in

note 33.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out

in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements

in the short and longer term.

NUAL REPORT 07/08 £EE#

31.

(@)

(b)

SRMIE (&)

FERR &)
AREWEN BYREFHEER
TERBIHT -

rEBFRAZNEERBERAEE
EEXRTEESREENREE &
RBEEEBERTPHNITEERIA
MR ERER) BRI EBMAEZH
REBMEARD T EEZHHEERD
AEBSZAQAALFERBEELET
EERBRPVEMER REER It
LMBERZEE R LRI R
F¥33 °

BEAEBEREEWRIRIR R E A E WK
MEASZEERRE-—SHERE
HAKM S22

REE SRR
REBRZEHNELEERARTESR
RECREEE -AEBMIBEKATE
HERBARBAHMZRBESTE
URHEREARESRERRKEE
ESRBBIRAMEARESRE U
ENEEHERIABDESTER -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTN\F=-A=t—HILFE (L&)

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . .. 3L.EBIBGM ...

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELREE (#)
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities TRFNAEERERARNETES
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s non- MEEREEENSBRENER &£
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BEEENLERITENRESRE (8
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed BEREEHANE JUNBZEREER
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at ERANZFENFNENST) RETER
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the EARARBEASZABE-

Company can be required to pay.

The Group
RE
2008 2007
= % STRLE
Total Total More than
contractual Within contractual Within 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted | year or Carrying  undiscounted | year or less than
amount  cash flow on demand amount  cashflow  on demand 5 years
Gl Crolls
AR -Fh AFRE -FR" ZENE
ik REX ik BREX fBHR
REEE REAR {8 REEE ReEE B8 JREE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7 7 i 7 i 7 7
Bank loans BITER 18,434 (78,959) (78,959) 115,874 (118,582) (107,191) (11,391)
Trade creditors E TR 156,594 (156,594)  (156,594) 163,724 (163,724) (163,724) -
Bills payable EHZE 8,891 (8,891) (8,891) 17,003 (17,003) (17,003) -
Accrued charges and other creditors B ERREMERT 108,133 (108,133)  (108,133) 13,200 (13,2000 (113,200 -
Amounts due to related ERBEELAHE
companies 3,709 (3,709) (3,709) 27 (217) (217) -
Amount due to associates and EABELTR
jointly controlled entities RELANE 7,686 (7,686) (7,686) 4,148 (4,148) (4148) -
Amounts due to a shareholder ERREHE 3,326 (3,326) (3,326) 3,286 (3,286) (3.286) -
366,773 (367,298)  (367,298) 41745 (420,160) (408,769) (11,391)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . . ... 3. E€@WIB&E) ...
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELREE (#)

The Company

b N
2008 2007
ZZINF TERLE
Total Total More than
contractual Within contractual Within 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted | year or Carrying  undiscounted | year or less than
amount  cashflow on demand amount cash flow  on demand 5 years
s Ll
ARH  -EAY ABRN -FRg ZENUE
B¢ RER Be REX BHR
BEEE RELE kE EEEE 4R fgE it:3
§000 §000 $000 $1000 $000 $1000 $000
i Fi i Fi FI Fi Fi
Bank loans RER 67420 (67480)  (67,480) 5513 (58049)  (50454) (7,595)
Trade creditors EATER 81,752 (81,752)  (81,752) 87,220 (87.20) (87,220) -
Bills payable EREE 4341 (4342) (4342) 10,529 (10529) (10529) -
Accrued charges and other creditors EHERRAMERS 31,201 @1,01) (31,201 34,166 (34,166) (34,66) -
Amounts due to related ERBELTHE
companies - - - 27 (217) (217) -
Amount due to associates and EREENAR
jointly controlled entities RENTHE 1,515 (1,515) (1,515) 753 (753) (753) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ElEPE 42,858 (42,858)  (42,859) 75001 (75,001) (75,001) -
29,088 (229,148)  (229,148) 264399 (265935)  (258340) (7.595)
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . . ... 3. E€@WIB&E) . ...
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIERE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term AEBEZANEZRBFTERBERBME
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates B -RUESANEREENREBAZME
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value EFEAEBR D AZTHEESRENERE
interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors the level of its BERAFEENZAR FAEEED
fixed rate and variable rate borrowings, either through managing MEENEENEZYIGERBEAFR
the contractual terms of the interest-bearing financial assets and HEHEH LEEHEENZRR A&
liabilities or through the use of interest rate swaps. The Group’s FREEXF HEEBUHAEEN
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (ii) FIZEBE R I EEERIE W T (i) 5 7= o AREE
below. The Group’s interest rate swaps can not fulfill the criteria ENANZER IS PSS REEN
for hedge accounting because the hedge relationship was not R - HIt X EEBENBILLAEE
documented at the inception of the hedge. Accordingly, the gain HRFZEHEEEBERTIZ
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged to the income
statement.
As at 31st March, 2008 the aggregate notional contract amount of R-ZBEENF=A=1+—H&TZH
the outstanding interest rate swap agreement was approximately R E B E 254 5100,000,000
$100,000,000 (2007:$100,000,000) which will expire in April 2008. T(ZZEZE £ F :100,000,0007T) © #
A loss of $219,000 arising from the changes in the fair value MR-ZEENENMAFNB - BE-ZE=E
subsequent to initial recognition was recognised during the year NE=ZRA=+—-—HILEFERARERE
ended 31st March, 2008 (2007: loss of $809,000). REELFEENSLATESE219,000
TTHEIB(=ZZ L F : F15809,0007T)
W o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIELEZE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRHAVWAEBARATNREE
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the balance HEEEFNEEE HEEEY
sheet date. The Group defines net borrowings as being all REBNF R RNESRENT
interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Group’s interest rate HR o

profile as monitered by management is set out below.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . . ...~ 3. S@MIAGME . ...
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FEBER (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (continued) (i) FIEZE (E)
The Group The Company
r5E LN
2008 2007 2008 2007
2RNF “RRLE “RENE “RELE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate  Amount rate  Amount rate  Amount rate  Amount
BRA= 8 ERAE R ERA= 8 ERAE 2
% $000 % $000 % $2000 % $000
ARl Fr Ak fr  Eokt fr Ak I
Fixed rate borrowings: EERZEE
Bank loans RITER 4.26% 42,184 4.80% 38,334 4.22% 34,920 4.70% 26513
Variable rate borrowings: TERNEEE
Bank loans RITER 454% 36,250 5.20% 77,540 454% 32,500 5.10% 30,000
Total net borrowings iEpe 78,434 115,874 67,420 56,513
Net fixed rate borrowings EEENFEMER
as a percentage of total EEE2AM
borrowings 53.8% 33.1% 51.8% 46.9%
(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (iii) BE D HF
At 3lst March 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/ RZZBZENF=ZA=+—-H" R&
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all REMEBHERISTE  FIRER
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the EFHTHERICOERER AT EE
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by approximately BAEBEZRHE RGN RREE
$303,000 (2007: $640,000). FE 2 51 49303,000T (= F
T F 1 640,0007T) ©
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming LS RE D M T RR A REE
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance REEHEEHRLE  SSEAR
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest FEERZEETEERIAR
rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative financial FPTESMITEMAZ ZHER
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis point brmEE o EF T FEI001EE
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment HLEREREZTEFELE
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the HIEHEMRFAERZSEREEE
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is 2 e A IRE_TT £
performed on the same basis for 2007. FHE2EEET -
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(d) Foreign currency risk

(i

(ii)

Forecast transactions

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
Group entities whose functional currency is HKD, in either
HKD or USD. Given this, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated with the

Group’s borrowings.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its
currency risk. All the forward contracts have maturities of
less than one year after the balance sheet date. At 3|1 March
2008, the Group had forward exchange contracts with a net
fair value of $1,162,000 (2007: $Nil), recognised as derivative
financial instruments and are included within “Trade and
other receivables” (note 22). The changes in fair value of the
forward exchange contracts were recognised in the income

statements (note 4).

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from forecast transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate.

31. 2@ T A (&)

(d) ShEEE RS

()

(i)

EHXE
AEBSRNVIIERABREERE
BRAEXBYRNEEE UG
IEFHENEERS - 5IBULIA
BEENEEEEREA
BTRARE -

CET

BB EI TN NEEE
HER/BYEEZIFEEEKX
KE - A EEEBRR A&
EEHHEMESERZFHAER -

AEENEEYUENERNE
EHNIEEBTER  HUNEE
HABYNAEELQT - BILUE
WMy EniE - At EEEY
THREAEENEESHSEM
ERHOIMEREMS o

AEBITLNBEBREAUY
FHABERRE REEBRRE
OMERBMENCEHERRE
—F - RZBENFE=ZR=+-—
B AEEHBEIATESHT
Az HMBEBRENRAFEESR
1,162,000 (Z 2B LF : 8|) I
2EF AR & H Ath EEUER R
(Mi5E22) - MERHAEHN A TE
BEE2HCEEZRTPER (M
4)

RE I B
TRAVNFAEBEREARAREE
RS ZNERR RSN
RiEDEMSER 2ABRSER
EHRIAEEIEBUARDFINEE
BRI ERTEMESL -
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31. 2RI A ()

(d) ShERB (4F)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EFIEE R ()
The Group
31 ]
2008 2007
=t 2 0% ZERLE
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
Dollars Euros Renminbi  Dollars Dollars Euros  Renminbi Dollars
EY HE ARY B in EE ARE B
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000 $000
7z z 7z 7z r r r 7z
The Group KEE
Trade and other receivables | FEUER R H B 13,779 3,305 29,462 - 2491 4,268 31,584 -
Cash and cash equivalents BARBLEEY 5,030 15 - 1,659 168 3 - 3437
Trade and other payables EABSRABENR (9,551) (33) - - 99 (17 - -
Amount due from/(to) El/ (EF)ER
Group companies NEFE - - - 39473 - - - (5,555)
Overall net exposure BFRR 9,258 3,347 29,462 41,332 12,724 4,100 31,584 (2,118)
The Company .|
Trade and other receivables | FEUER R Hft B 7,965 1,718 1,258 - 15,729 2027 1,988 -
Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEN 4,358 75 - = 87 3 - -
Trade and other payables EREFRAMERT (6,800) (33) S - (6,056) 43) - -
Overall net exposure aEk 5,523 1,760 1,258 - 9,760 2,185 1,988 -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . . ... 3. E€BWIB&E) . ...
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) (d) SRR (F)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (iii) B E 77
The following table indicates the approximate change in the TRIREKEEBRARDT 2B
Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax (and retained BEMN (RREEF EREE
profits) in response to reasonably possible changes in BEXRZEEUREEE (REE
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group and the RADNB AR EE KT EKRE
Company has significant exposure at the balance sheet date. B)MEEZBNEE HRE
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between group PMEEEEAGBMNES M
companies where the denomination of the balances is in a BREESRTIUBARARERAN
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender BB UMM EREETE -

or the borrower.

The Group
FEE
2008 2007
—2B2N\F —ERRLHE

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Effect on (decrease) Effect on
in foreign  profit after tax in foreign profit after tax
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rate profits
EXxL#,/ HRHIZEIK ExL#,/ HHRBEBEIR
(TR  REERZ® (TH) REBENzZEE
% $°000 % $°000
Bt Fr Bt Fr
Euros [/ 5% 1,176 5% 1,763
(5%) (1,176) (5%) (1,763)
Renminbi AR 8% 2,568 8% 2,525
Hong Kong Dollars BT (8%) (2,464) (8%) (123)
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(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk in existence at that date,
and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain

constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the analysis
as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
and equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling
at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 #£E R

31. 2@ T A (&)

(d) SRR ()

(iii)

BEE 7 W ()
BREIWIBREZSHNE
BEHEE#RE  WEEANRAEE
BEERNZAMAR 2ERE
BMEE  UREBRFAAHMLE
H(LERNR)EFTE -

FiSEHEEREREZETE
FEAEALMBRERZSE
AREBE 2 - BUME - B
BEEHIBRRETEEIT CBE
EXEFEIETLHEMER 2
EREEZB2EATE - LR
2 MERDHAEEZTE
BeBRBREENRER (RSB
ZYEERE  YHME2REH
MREEACERERBRERE
) ZAFEE - ZAMIIIEE
“ERLERAZAREEET -
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B=E

(e)

()

(8

—TENFZA=T—HLLEE (LETit)

Equity price risk

The Group’s unquoted investment is held for long term strategic
purpose. Their performance is assessed at least bi-annually
performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited
information available to the Group, together with an assessment of
their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans. The Group
has insignificant listed investments on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong. The Group considered its exposure to equity price risk is

insignificant.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 3 |st March, 2008 and 2007.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions
used in estimating fair values of financial instruments set out in

note 31(f) above.

(i) Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs. Fair
values for the unquoted equity investments are estimated
using the applicable price/earning ratios for similar listed
companies adjusted for the specific circumstances of the

issuer.

(i) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar

financial instruments.

(i)~ Financial guarantees
The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be

made.

®

(g)

. SRIE (&)

I (8 =L B2
FEBRAEFLETREDFHERRIR
AR AXRBADBBEEULTER
ZRERKTEBEFRGHEGERETE
D-FMRFE  AREEARE R
BEXGMETRELFER A&
ERAHAZRERBTERKX -

AP EE
FAEEBMIAMRSIRSEIRAR
—ERLER=FFEN\FZA=T—
BzAFEEEETK-

AR EEZE

LUl 7 &5 £l b sE3 1 () A LA
AERMIAZAFEENEESER
ek -

(i) FEF
AT EEREAEEBZTSRES
E FENKRIGRE-F LT
HEREZAFEERLT AR
ZERECHRRME  RIZE
TAZERERAE -

(i) HEEFMRE
ATEERERAREEREUR
BE TRECEMIANET
MIGFIEBERE -

(iii) B FEER

CREMEERNAFEENDS
BB 3% A F R BY 5k 58 5L BR 7% B U B
NERAMETE (WERESLKEE
) RSB REZEEMETE
S EREEEEERBRTHM
WEHEBRAIE > EEETERIE
RAER T B UK B FI 224 L 8
(WM EEEREE TSN
5 e
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32. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 3|st March, 2008 not provided @ RZZEENF=ZA=+-—H8  NBk%E
MBRRFEHEBCERRENT ¢

for in the financial statements were as follows:

The Group The Company
r& AATH
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETLHF —BENE —E2RHF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
¥ Fr Fr Fr
Capital commitment EXEE (FBE
excluding share of SEDNTA)
jointly controlled
entities:
Contracted for EHES
— fixed assets -BEEEE 281 91 281 9l
Authorised but not SRE
contracted for BRFTH
— fixed assets -BEEEE 768 - 298 -
1,049 9l 579 91
Group’s share of the AEEGEE AT
capital commitments RENHER
of jointly controlled A
entities :
Authorised but not
contracted for EREERITH 4,045 136,801 - -
Contracted but not EEEY
provided for BARELERS 37,355 47,877 - -
41,400 184,678 - -
42,449 184,769 579 91
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JRIE (A

(b)

At 3Ist March, 2008, the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

RZZEENF=ZA=Z+—-H ' REX
ARRNEEREE A REMNNRE
HEMRBEARNOT :

The Group
AEH

2008 2007

=BENF —TTLF

$°000 $°000

Fr For

Within | year —FR 7,816 2,810
After | year but

within 2 years —FEREWMER 105 186
After 2 years but

within 5 years “ERERER 122 271

More than 5 years EEUE 439 7,888

8,482 11,155

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and buildings
classified as being held under finance lease and land held under

operating leases are described in note |3.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect of
a number of properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years, with
an option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms are

renegotiated.

. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by subsidiaries at the balance sheet date
which amounts to $11,813,000 (2007: $64,304,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantees issued as the directors consider the fair value of

the guarantees issued to be insignificant.

BEARBEBANEAENEBELI R
BFREEKEHANEENIHNER
HMEZHFHRMEEIS -

RZEEEN  AEESBRREE
BOBENYENAEA BELHEE
—ROSRB-—ZE=F WEEREER
BEEIPERED  BRAAKRRY
AEHBE °

CBEEEREE

ERENFBEER

REER KQAFERETL2ENB
ARERF2RITBEBRITIRMIE
R EBRAB UL RBIEEMAE
REARDFIRENFR NRRATARE
HEAERARENESEEARAMBLR
MEZHSI 211,813,000t ER (=
FELF : 64,304,0007T) °

ESRANBEZSEERZLQATVEEL
FER AAALERRZERRER
EfEZEW A ©
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

34, EEEE AT 2EARS

(a) Recurring transactions (a) REMXRS
2008 2007
—EEN\E —EERLHF
Notes $°000 $°000
HiEt Fr Fr
YGM Trading Limited and its YGMEZERABRRE
subsidiaries (“YGMT Group”) MEAR ([YGMTEE] ) (i)
Purchases of traded products by rEEREESER
the Group (v) 594 6,840
Sales of traded products by rEEHEESER
the Group (v) 40,845 39,805
Rental income received and REEE T W R FE W 3
receivable by the Group HEWA v) 3,755 3,906
Management fee received and FEEERRERERE
receivable by the Group (vi) 804 804
Building management fee TEBEWREWRETERE
received and receivable by
the Group 312 324
YGM Marketing Pte Limited YGM Marketing Pte Limited (i)
Sales of traded products by the rEBHEESGER
Group (v) 4,212 3,227
Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. EHERFGBERAT (iii)
Purchases of traded products by AEEEEESEM
the Group 48,993 46,412
Allied Textiles Limited HBEGMERAT (iii)
Purchases of traded products by TEEEEESEM
the Group 3,073 7,874
Purchases on behalf of and sales TEERBERHEE
of traded products by the Group BEREM (vii) 33 311
Subcontracting fee paid and REBEARER
payable by the Group SEMIEAR = 862
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. EBAEATZEARR S (#
....... (COMUNUED). et s
(a) Recurring transactions (continued) () BREMXRZS (#)
2008 2007
—ERNF ZERLE
Notes $°000 $°000
Wi Fx 77
Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd. Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd.
(“YTK Industries Sdn. Bhd.”) ( TYTK Industries Sdn. Bhd.] ) (viii)
Subcontracting fee received and AEEC R ER
receivable by the Group NEEINTER = 1,683
Sales of traded products by the rEBHEESER
Group - 1,600
Wouxi No. | Cotton Mill Import EH-RELOERAT (iv)
and Export Co., Ltd.
Purchases of traded products by rEBEEESER
the Group - 5
Commission income received and rEEE R RERASKBA
receivable by the Group = 214
Yangtzekiang S.A. (“YSA”) Yangtzekiang S.A. ([YSA])
Sales of traded products by the Group REBHEEZER (ix) 26,573 16,722
Director of YSA YSAEES
Sales of subsidiaries HEME AR 30(a) = 619
The above transactions were, in the opinion of the directors, EEERA ARG 2ERRIKRMEE
carried out on prices and terms comparable to those offered to or REFBIYIE=EIHFEEMREHRZ
by independent third parties. RN ©
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Certain directors of the Company are collectively the
controlling shareholders of both the YGMT Group and the
Group.

YGM Marketing Pte Limited was beneficially owned by certain
directors of the Company. The relevant directors disposed of
their interests in YGM Marketing Pte Limited in November
2007. YGM Marketing Pte Limited ceased to be a connected
party to the Group upon the disposal. The related party
transactions represent the sales of traded products by the

Group to YGM Marketing Pte Limited prior to the disposal.

Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. and Allied Textiles Limited
were the associates of the Group which were disposed of
to Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Talak”), a jointly
controlled entity of the Group in March 2006.

During the year, Wuxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd., Allied Textiles
Limited and Taizhou Changxin Textile (Xinghua) Co., Ltd. were

wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi Talak.

Wuxi No. | Cotton Mill Import and Export Co., Ltd. is a
subsidiary of Wuxi No. | Cotton Mill which was a minority
shareholder of Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi YGM”), a
subsidiary of the Group. Wuxi YGM was disposed of by the
Group to Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, in March 2006.

During the year, Wuxi YGM was a wholly owned subsidiary of
Wauxi Talak.
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34. HEEBEALTZE ARG (&)

REMRS (F)

(@)

Bt -

@)

(iii)

RKABEBETEELRBAYGMTE
ERAREEZERBKER -

YGM Marketing Pte Limited%7X
NABETESEREB LT °
EHESCRN =22 LtE+—
B & HEHRYGM Marketing Pte
LimitedZ 2 - H &% YGM
Marketing Pte Limiteds Ik 5% & <
EEMNEEAL BEALZX
SAHENAEEHEESER
FYGM Marketing Pte Limited ©

BERNOBERAIARNEE
BERERAAHAREE 2 HE
DA PLERFNER-BEREF
ZARHETAEE -REERQ
A -HEEREBREARARA (TE
HBRB] o

RER BHERFHBERLD
B HEBESBERATDRIEM
R¥HE (B BRLAHEH
BERBM - 2EHAMBATR -

BB REHODERARNAES
TE—BHBRZHMBLAR MW
BEME—NBHBBMARBRI
BEHBERAR ((RERIE
B (KRB ZHEAR) — &
DPERR -R=-BERF=R -
BERIBEHBERITDHE
FTEEHEFLAEE-—RGED
A-EERBREBRAT -

RER BHERIBEREFR
Be2EREWEAR -

141



YANGTZEK

BT # XK

142

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY aE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TTN\F=-A=t—HILFE (L&)
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Recurring transactions (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

As certain directors and their associates are collectively the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
YGMT Group and the Group and ultimate beneficial owner
of YGM Marketing Pte Limited, the continuing connected
transactions and the license arrangement constitute
connected transactions for the Group under the Listing Rules.
The SEHK has granted to the Company waivers from strict
compliance with the disclosure and Independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

The management fees were charged for administrative,
business strategy, personnel, legal and company secretarial
work, accounting and management services provided, which
are determined annually between the respective parties after

negotiations having regard to the cost of services provided.

The Group purchased traded products on behalf of Allied

Textiles Limited which reimbursed the Group at cost.

(viii) Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd. is an associate of the Group.

(ix)

Following the completion of disposal of YSA by the Group in
December 2006, YSA was a connected person of the Group,
under the Listing Rules on the ground that it was an associate
of the director of YSA, who was a connected person by virtue
of Rule 14A.11(2). YSA ceased to be a connected party to
the Group effective from January 2008. The related party
transactions for the year ended 3Ist March, 2008 represent
the sales of traded products by the Group to YSA during the
period from April 2007 to December 2007.

34. HEEBEALTCEARRE (&

(@)

REURZ (F)
(v BETESSBRYGMTEERRK

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

EEzERRR(EERLWHR
Al)® YGM Marketing Pte Limited
ZERERERA AL FE&
BEXSRERAETHEBRAE
EBEERS HIXEeRE#H
RRBIETZER S MBREE
FLTRAE4AZTRERIE
BUBRRHAEZRE -

EEBEWARRHITRIF %
BEE - AS  EZERLANE
T -STREBRBER  Z
ERRMAEBATEFRERR
BE -

FEBAHBELBERQ ARG
BECEZERMYEHIBRAMNE -

Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd.
AEAEBEZBERT -

HEYSABE R K% YSAERR
HAYSAES(RELWRAE
14A11(2)1% > YSAZE BB R B E
AL ZBBALHABE EHR
Bl AEEEEAL - B
ZENFE—AHRK YSAF LK
AXEENBEAL BE=-T
ENF=ZA=+—BLFE HE
BALZREA-ZZTLFENA
Z-ZTEFT-AHBEAEE
HEESEMTYSAC
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R % B =

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_TZTN\E=A=t—RIFE (LE&ril)

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. HEEBEALTZE ARG (&)

(b) EW (EMHBAELE BEQ

ARGEDRNA:

(b) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies and

associates and jointly controlled entities:

2008 2007
—BBN\F  —BBLE
$°000 $°000
FT Fr

Amount due from

YGMT Group FEWRYGMTEERIE 6,414 8213
Amount due to

YGMT Group A YGMTEE R E (3,623) (80)
Amount due (to)/from (FE1S) /FEUR

YGM Marketing YGM Marketing

Pte Limited Pte Limited K18 (86) 43
Amount due from

Chanson Ltd. BWRHFESERABNIE 38 21
Amount due to

Yangtzekiang ENRIBEARARNRIE

Investment Co., Ltd. - (137)
Amount due to

Wouxi Changxin B RFHE

Textile Co., Ltd. BRARRIE (6,511) (4,143)
Amount due to Allied FEAS 3 EE B A5 B B IR

Textiles Limited NEFRIE (1,175) ("
Amount due to YTK FE{FYTK Industries Sdn.

Industries Sdn. Bhd. Bhd. 518 - *)
Amount due to a shareholder, B —BRERRE —

Chan Family Investment Chan Family Investment

Corporation Ltd. Corporation Ltd. (3,326) (3,286)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR M AT

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

S
35.

(b)

—ET)\EF=ZR=+—RHIFE (LUErit)
COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures,
and the amendments to HKAS |, Presentation of financial
statements: Capital disclosures, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures in the
current year and to show separately comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in the financial year
ended 31st March, 2008. Further details of these developments are

disclosed in note 2.

Impairment of trade and loans receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade and
loans receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”. The carrying
amounts of trade and loans receivables are reviewed periodically
in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined
below the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of trade and
loans receivables is the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that is a

reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses, projections
of expected future saleability of goods and management experience
and judgments. Based on this review, a write down of inventories
will be made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
customers’ preferences, actual saleability of goods may be different
from estimations and the income statement in future accounting

periods could be affected by differences in these estimations.

35.

(b)

BB F

HREMT (BB BI|REER) F7
REMTE  BER(EBETER
BUERBRIRXMBERRNIEK: &
AT BETHEBFCEAE B
RHEXAFEZRESY  ARNEE
TEREENFZA=+-RLMRFE
BEABEZREERI REEHT -
FRZERH cEZHBERMER2
BE -

B AT AT R A

FE W B R e B ORI E

B ERERERRARERNIRE
BEUEELENE  ZEEEAERR
RIERE] MBEGETESRE
ERETEREGR EEREIMEL
BR - BURRRERNEREESDE
HEHER . UG AR T RE S5
EEREREENLT - BUERARE
HOATROSHEZREREUEEND
S REFEFRRBSREF R
B -AEBMERMBIANERUE
EHETAWEESEMEINEE -

WO 17 &
AEESZEFERKRD T BHAR
EVHENTEAREERNERRA
B R ¥ 17 B MY AR EEMF i E HR 8B o
HEENRAEKXRESENE ML TE
BEE AXEESRBEFHANER
MR FENER ERFTFIRE
MREBRLERE BEREVEETREA
fREFERE - bk 5B A AT BES
ERMNYEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#



LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% 2% Y =E

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE2—_TZ)\F=ZA=+—BILFE (LB
36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 36. EEthET R E (F

....... (SONBINUEA) | e s et

(¢) Income tax (c) FifEHt
The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. AEBERZEREEER MM
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income tax. SR EEECHESHEBEREELH
There are transactions during the ordinary course of business, for B -REEXKBARD BEZXS
which calculation of the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. st ENRATEELRE - MEL
Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that BAHMOBRBR BN R ESEE
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax ZEERAEHELZARAENEEN
and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination BB RELH EREEREE -
is made.
Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the management’s EEREEENBRIA T EZETIARE
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available against BHE BURREREREH A AEKER
which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual TH 5 18 B9 R 2R FE SR BU% R 9 ik 51 o B
utilisation may be different. BEBNERBABRSEREMAETTE

AE e

(d) Valuation of Investment Properties d) REVHXMLHE
The valuation of investment properties requires management’s REVEGEEREEERAEMLE
input of various assumptions and factors relevant to the valuation. ERNESERRERZ -SEEAB
The Group conducts annual revaluation of its investment YEESGEMWEERN  RIBERER
properties by independent professionally qualified valuers based on AEGEMBENZERE HER
these assumptions agreed with the valuers prior to adoption. BEYEETFEETNML

(e) Impairment of investments in associates (e) RBEENTZRERE
The Group conducts impairment reviews of investments in ERMEHBERBRELETRE
associates whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate EREAEVEELIKREE  AEES
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable or tests for HRBEE QAR 2 REETHERS
impairment annually in accordance with the relevant accounting RREEESTENHEEETE
standards. Determining whether an asset is impaired requires ERERAN BErEERALHEERERE
an estimation of the value in use, which requires the Group to NEATEERAEE  EtEFEHE
estimate the future cash flows and a suitable discount rate in B AEEHEEATERBRERE
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash WEGEEMWMBE RTERE - HER
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. HERESREENTEN  BlTEEsH
After reviewing the business environment as well as the Group’s BEARBEE ERNEFEREN
objectives and past performance of the investments, management RAEEREBERBERRE &
has concluded that an impairment loss of $4,000,000 is made for BEERAE RZESEENF=ZA=1+-—
the investments in associates at 3|st March, 2008. H BMEARAREEARINBESE

4,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bR R

For the year ended 31st March, 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE_TZNE=_A=t—RIFE (LE&ril)

37. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOTYET EFFECTIVE FORTHE ANNUAL
ACCOUNTINGYEAR ENDED 3I1ST MARCH,

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting year
ended 31st March, 2008 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what

the impact of these amendments, new standards and new

interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that their adoption is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or

amended disclosures in the financial statements:

37. RBE-EENF=ZA=1+—

ALtE2FEatFECHEMAEN
REMWER - HEARRE
AREBRNTE

EERUBBERER2H  BBES
BASCHEMT BT HEAR
2B ERZZEENF=ZA=+-—H
b EFFEHRER REEKXE
WERARA M BRER -

REBEATHULSET HEAR
R T B 9K FE A HR R 9 A SR Y &2
2 Z2SRAERMBEEET - HEL
KRR R BN K E EEMP BN
MEBRERLENAREETK -

BEoh - BUT B R T RE S AR B A ER R
BORBEHHIE RIS -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on &3t HIRIMAMR
or after FHEENK

Revised HKAS | BT e RS 15 Presentation of financial

statements

Revised HKAS 23 1

SR &5 ERI%E235E  Borrowing costs

HKFRS 8 B IR R S8 Operating segments

g S B ORI st January, 2009 —EENE
i

RERAE I'st January, 2009 —EENE
—-A-H

ENE I'st January, 2009 —EENE
—A-H
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NT LIMITED

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
FENE QA

At 3Ist March, 2008 ( Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZBETNF=ZA=1—

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries HAEBXENEEFEATECTEW
BAAZHENT -BBATHN R

B2RHHAHEBER -

which materially affected the results or assets of the Group. The class of

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of Issued and Percentage of

incorporation/ paid up share equity held by

establishment  capital/registered the the
Company and operation capital Group  Company Principal activity
13 A ERTRAR FERFEDL

NEEE R RAEMER A&H ART TEXEK

Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding

BERIHEBRLE BB REER

Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Garment

BBAERRAT N manufacturing and

investment holding

PAREGE R

REER

Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Garment

RS EHARA R N manufacturing

BRI

Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC/ HK$75,600,000 100 - Knitting and dyeing

Limited wholly foreign of fabrics and

SHEEEMNERAR owned enterprise manufacturing

HEl/ of garments

BNEELRE hEHSE -~ BB

R p AR EE

Whampoa Garment The PRC/ HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment

Manufacturing (Guangzhou) wholly foreign manufacturing

Co., Ltd. owned enterprise BB
BEHIREKEMBRAT HEl
ENEERE
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

R iL

"R AR 2 #H

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TEMB QA

At 31st March, 2008
RZZEZE)\F=A=+—H
Place of

incorporation/

Issued and

paid up share

Percentage of

equity held by

establishment  capital/registered the the
Company and operation capital Group  Company Principal activity
fidi VoA BRTRARE FERFBESL
NEERE R JR A/ E AN rEE FAE TEXK
Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Limited The PRC/ HK$6,000,000 100 - Garment
BMNEHRKRERDE wholly foreign manufacturing
owned enterprise Rk EE
R/
EMEE DX
Yangtzekiang Cambodia Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$1 100 100 Investment holding
HERLHE REERR
YGM (Cambodia) Limited Cambodia US$750,000 100 - Garment
RIFE manufacturing
RAREE
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka33,400,119 67 - Garment
=yl 1A manufacturing
BAEE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling

®E

R 3
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NT LIMITED

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
TEBREQNRARESERT

At 31st March, 2008

R=ZT)\E=A=+—H

The following list contains only the particulars of principal associates and HAEBXENEEFEATECTER
jointly controlled entities, all of which are unlisted corporate entities, ERNTRIREELNRFTEBEATIANKL

which materially affected the results or assets of the Group:

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

TEARR)ZFHBOT:

Percentage of ownership
interest held by
the the

Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
L BERXBIL
DR EH RS E r5EE  XAR TEEH
Qinghai Changchun Carbon Co., Ltd. The PRC/ 25 - Production and
EEREREZERAT Sino-foreign distribution of carbon used
equity joint venture in aluminium production
FE/PINEE BAREERNEE
REdx HER RS
Yangtzekiang Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 49 49 Garment manufacturing
BRAE RASE
Wauxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC/ 49 49 Investment holding
BERBIREERLT Sino-foreign REZR
equity joint venture
FEIFIHNEE
BEDHE
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC/ 49 - Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd.* Sino-foreign textile products
FNRETH S (H (L) BRRA 7 equity joint venture B m BE
FEIFIHNEE
BEDHE
Allied Textiles Limited* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacturing of
i AR B A PR A F) Sino-foreign garments and textiles

equity joint venture
hERSHEE

e S
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PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
TEBREQNRARESERT

At 31st March, 2008
RZZEZENF=RA=+—H

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Percentage of ownership

interest held by
the the

Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
i Vo BFEREXED L

ARt R FEE EAYNG| TEXK
Wauxi Changxin Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 - Property development
BERMBEEERAR" Sino-foreign and investment
equity joint venture MEBRRRE

HEIFIHNEE

Rehx
Wauxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacturing of yarns
BERFHEERA T Sino-foreign and fabrics
equity joint venture HRAREE

HEIFHEE

Rehx
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacture and
BERIBEHEERAR" Sino-foreign sale of textiles
equity joint venture HERHEE
HEIFHNEE B

Rehx
Wauxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacture and
BEE T IREHBERAT" Sino-foreign sale of textiles
equity joint venture HERHEE
HEIFIHNEE B

Rehx
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd.* The PRC/ 49 - Manufacturing of
RAMRAHBERA T Sino-foreign garments and textiles

equity joint venture
hE/FHEE

ReEdE

*  Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi Talak Investment Co., Ltd.

* EBERBREARLDZZ2EHFAWBLTF -
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NT LIMITED

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hERE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(restated)  (restated)
(&3l)  (B%)
note (i) note (ii)
Het) M)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Income statement BEX
Group turnover EEEXE 1,493,488 1,665,835 1,600,981 1,725,435 1,540,276
Profit from operations R R 70,533 73,188 65,278 114,526 68,551
Finance costs F&E A AR (26,206)  (31,800)  (40,848)  (19,099)  (10,803)
Share of profits less losses of FE(E B E A BRI BB
associates 49,466 (33) 3,474 (343) 1,523
Share of profits of jointly controlled BiEEENTER
entities - - 40,619 14,121 76,987
Loss on disposal of associates HEBENTER - - (39,272) - =
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAREE, (WH) - - 960 (9,296) =
Impairment loss of an associate B4 N\ TR E - - (14,493) - (4,000)
Net valuation gains on investment REMERBERRFEE
properties - 6,180 23,299 10,231 18,866
Profit before taxation PR B AR A 93,793 47,535 39017 110410 151,124
Income tax e (20,323) (4,364)  (11,002) (13,670) (9,174)
Profit for the year REERA 73,470 43,171 28,015 96,470 141,950
Attributable to: BB
Equity shareholders of the Company KATRESE A 69,085 39,195 25,275 96,706 142,240
Minority interests LHBRRER 4,385 3,976 2,740 (236) (290)
Profit for the year REERF 73,470 43,171 28,015 96,470 141,950

ANNUAL REPORT 07/08 S EF#

151



YANGTZEK

BT # XK

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hERE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
(restated)  (restated)
(E5) (E5)
note (i) note (ii)
WEa M)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Assets and liabilities BEEREHE
Fixed assets BEE&E 620,254 599,369 224,334 240,239 262,849
Construction in progress EEIR 18,508 877 26 42 291
Intangible assets BEERE 3,479 4,726 2,874 2,874 2,874
Goodwill GRS (2,117) (6,588) - - -
Interest in associates EHBELARER 248,263 246,912 14,810 14,671 12,110
Interest in jointly controlled entities EENTER - - 281,788 314,042 428,655
Loans receivable ERER 7917 - - - =
Investments RE 4326 - - - =
Other financial assets HthemEE - 7,786 9,014 4,586 1,453
Deferred tax assets BEREBHERE - 4,367 1,553 - 1,204
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/(BE)FE (156,539) (41,989) 132,805 134,683 171,042
Total assets less current liabilities ERBHERATHER 744,091 815,460 667,204 711,137 880,478
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (295,079)  (231,663)  (83,589)  (31,660)  (41,528)
449,012 583,797 583,615 679,477 838,950
Share capital BR 7R 70,123 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184
Reserves #iE 344,238 439,740 478,431 573,547 732,996
Total equity attributable to equity EREEREALTIARESFEA
shareholders of the Company RSB 414,361 544,924 583,615 678,731 838,180
Minority interests PHBRRER 34,651 38,873 - 746 770
Total equity R 449,012 583,797 583,615 679,477 838,950
Per share basis LERtE
Earnings per share BREF HK$0.48  HK$0.22  HK$0.12  HK$0.46 HK$0.68
Note: Kt -
(i) As a result of the rights issue during the year ended 3Ist March, 2005, in accordance () EMR-ZFZHEF=ZF=+—-HLEFEER
with the Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 5, figures for 2B RATENEBEASESE —F
2004 have been restated for comparison purposes. ZTNFEZHFEENREMELLB AR -
(i)  The HKICPA issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that were (i) BESTMOSECHEMETEHIREIIZ

effective or available for early adoption for accounting periods beginning
on or after Ist January, 2005. Figures for the year 2005 have been restated.
However, it is not practicable to restate earlier years for comparison

purposes except for the presentation of minority interests.

MBREER YR -FFTHE-HA—H
FEAMAZETHEERRATURFR
e —ETRFEZHFECTES - BE
BUEFEHFUFELRE R T (FRD
HRREZN 25 F M) -
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